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ITEM NO.1:

FY 2006 BUDGET (C.c. 04-287, c.c. 05-19, c.c. 05-63, c.c. 05-82, and C.c. 05-120)

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for Thursday, April 14, 2005. For the record, we have Members
Carroll, Mateo, Molina, and Tavares as well as Kane present.
Members, good morning. This morning we're going to have first our public testimony.
We are scheduled to meet with .. .I believe Ms. Terryl Vencl from MVB, and we'll also
be meeting with, I believe, the Maui Humane Society, Ms. Jocelyn Bouchard which I also
believe is here in the audience this morning as well as their resource, resource personnel.
But before we get into that, we'll go ahead and open up with public testimony.
If anybody does have a cell phone or a pager, if you can please tum it to the off or silent
mode at this time, we'd appreciate that. Those of you signed up to testify, we'll be giving
you a total of four minutes. At three minutes we'll let you know of that time and that will
give you an additional minute to conclude your comments. And then at that time, please,
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we will ask if the Members have any questions for you to clarify your comments and
thank you for your testimony. Please state your name for the record and if you do
represent an organization, we'd like to know that as well.
With that, we have Mr. Michael Abrams here this morning. Good morning, sir. If you
can, please step to the podium. Appreciate that. And if there's anybody else who wishes
to testify, now is your opportunity to sign up .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. ABRAMS: Yes, good morning.
CHAIR KANE: Good morning.
MR. ABRAMS: I'm not really sure, I've never done this before. I, I think I'm here to testify for
the Maui Economic Development Board, and basically we did win a pianning grant
for ... from the County for, I believe, $5,000. The planning grant is for our brand new
nonprofit organization that we've created, called the Maui Food Technology Center. We
exist for the purpose of combining agriculture, education and the Hawaiian food
processing industry, and kind of forging a closer linkage among those three sectors of the
Hawaiian economy. And we're in our planning stages now. We're trying to plan for a
facility which will be more than a new food product incubation kitchen. It's going to be a
facility that will teach principles of food science to students at the culinary academy and
will also teach food science principles to the farmers and we're, we also exist to find new
markets for Hawaiian agriculture.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And can you state your name for the record, please?
MR. ABRAMS: Oh, I'm sorry. My name is Michael Abrams.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Abrams. Members, any questions for Mr. Abrams? Hearing
none, thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. ABRAMS: Thank you .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir. Is there anybody else signed up to testify? Members, without
objections, we're going to go ahead and close testimony for today's meeting. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. We'll go ahead and close it up. With that,
Members, I believe we have Ms. Terryl Vencl that will be opening up. I know that she
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has a few ... display materials that she'd like to use as part of her presentation. So the
Chair will call for a five-minute recess, and we'll go ahead and allow Ms. Vencl to come
forward and take a seat up here and also set up her, her material. Okay, we are in recess
and let's go to about 9:12. " .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:10 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:13 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, we're reconvened. With us this morning we
have Ms. Terryl Vencl, Executive Director for the Maui Visitors Bureau. We have been
given a few pieces of information to follow along with her presentation. Before we
begin, Ms. Morrison, any comments? Okay. Any comments before we begin, Members?
Okay. Ms. Vencl, good morning.
MS. VENCL: Good morning-CHAIR KANE: If you can, please identify yourself for the record.
MS. VENCL: Surely. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Council members. I apologize for the voice
this morning. My name is Terryl Vencl. I am the Executive Director of the Maui
Visitors Bureau. Let me begin this morning by thanking you for your past support of the
efforts of the Maui Visitors Bureau. You have, this County has obviously been key in
making a, a difference for Maui's economic successes.
I would like to introduce to you today the people who are kind of the heart and soul in my
particular office on Maui. We have, of course, staff on Molokai and Lanai, but with us
today we have Lynn Erfer who is our Director of Marketing, Tom Risko is Director of
Sales, and Kelii Brown is Director of Public Relations. They're here to assist if we need
their expertise for questions a little later on.
As you know the Mayor has put $3.5 million (a flat number) in the budget this year for
Maui Visitors Bureau. We are certainly very appreciative of that. But I guess as I sit
here and listen to people during the Budget Session if there's a theme that seems to be
consistent, it's the same one that I have and that is budget stay flat, cost of business go
up. As you know, as you may know the cost of business has been going up for the last
three years. Right now we're running at 10 percent plus annually and when you look at
the type of business we do, our airfares are up 20 plus percent regardless of where we go,
interisland or out of state or out of the country for that matter.
What does that mean to MVB? That means that something in the program area has to go
to keep up with the cost of doing business. Last year we cut ads in Bride and Modern
Bride magazines by one each. The cost in those publications last year went up 6 percent.
We also cut an ad in the meetings arena due to the cost of an increase of 4 percent.
Further, all of the events where we do television advertising are up 10 percent plus. Now
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that's still a very good buy for us because of the type of exposure that we get, but it still
adds to the bottom line. We have also been notified that as of January bulk mail price
will increase by 15 percent. As you know fulfillment, which is really bulk mail for us, is
a huge part of our budget. You may also remember that last year we changed the call
centers because we wanted our phones answered 2417 to accommodate other time zones,
particularly our east coast market. We now have seen big increases in the call center
volume, but of course that means more cost to mail out the request that we get. Those
folks, too, are in the process of negotiating a new rate for this year. To help with the
fulfillment cost, we did away with the envelope that we used to use for mailing. Our, our
planner, we made some of the things that we used to put in the envelope self-contained
within the planner and now we just have to stick a label on it. We send out about
225,000 planners each year. We also ship those pieces from the mainland as opposed to
Hawaii to save dollars. That exercise alone kept us within budget this year. Maps that
once cost us 12 cents are now at 28 cents, and we provide about 80,000 maps annually.
Moving forward, we will have to cancel a Destination Maui trip. That is a trip where we
go and train travel agents about the new things and about how to sell Maui or we may
have to cancel more bridal or honeymoon ads or scale them back, the airport music may
have to be looked at, or a new opportunity will simply not be possible. Research and
website development is really a thing that will realize a slump, and I'm really concerned
about how that may affect us because we are really getting some wonderful hits on
website these days.
If I were to have a choice, I would ask you graciously and humbly for another $200,000.
That would help to keep the momentum going and keep us exactly where we're at and
top of mind. You can bet that our competitors are watching and they're looking to be
wherever we are not. Maui, unfortunately, does not sell itself. I realize that in the public
arena sometimes it feels that way, but it's because you don't know all of the stuff that
goes on in the background to make that happen. Marketing sells Maui.
Last year Maui had 2.4 million visitors spending $2.9 billion and according to DBEDT's
latest numbers for February, Maui made up 26.1 percent of the State total of
expenditures. Those expenditures represent jobs for our residents and dollars for their
fixed and discretionary spending.
How could I justify such an increase? Let me clarify first that TAT dollars are not local
taxpayer dollars. Our residents do not pay this tax unless they visit an island and, and
stay overnight in a property. These monies come from visitors and those monies were
intended to be used to market our islands and to assist the County in addressing the
impacts of the visitors. So even after you've graciously shared with MVB, you still have
a great deal of money for your General Fund and for you to determine how to spend those
dollars, be it parks' repair and maintenance, fire, police, whatever your choice is. If the
visitor numbers go down, so do your discretionary TAT dollars. Your TAT dollars are,
were up last year, they are up substantially this year, and I believe you'll see $20 million
again next year, first time since about the year 2000. An increase is needed, as I
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mentioned, simply so that we can maintain what it is that we're doing and stay top of
mind. If we don't keep up with the rising costs, we will lose momentum as we have to
cancel programs.
Maui has seen a continued small increase in occupancy of 1 to 2 percent annually.
We've continued to see an increase in the length of stay and in the per person per day
expenditures. Those are all things that you have requested. Fewer heads, more
expenditures keep the growth small and, most importantly, keep it targeted. We have
fulfilled the mission and we'd like to continue to work on that mission. To do that, we
have to market and advertise in upscale markets. We choose the travel agents who
produce for us, no one else. We continue to educate the travel agent and the consumer
world and we do that in a very specific targeted manner. We do not attend all the trade
shows that we can attend. We pick and choose based on our, our target. To reach that
specific visitor frankly costs more than to throw dollars at any advertising or anything
that comes our way. It's a proven track record and now it's one that the State has
adopted as well.
I probably need not tell you that over 25 percent of our work force in Maui County is
directly in the visitor industry and probably at least another 25 indirectly affected by this
industry. Further, the industry gives back to the community in nonprofits to the tune of
millions of dollars a year through our efforts with the charity walk, our seniors dinner.
Constantly we are, are giving certificates, dinners, overnighters to nonprofits for auction
items and that sort of thing. Our success is part of the reason that we have low
unemployment rate. With the exception of a skill level, there's really no reason for
anyone on this island not to be able to find a job.
I'm sure that you're also aware of the trickle down effect. I recall back in the early '90s
that the Visitor Industry Education Council had a wallet card that said 80 per. .. , 80 cents
of every dollar brought to our islands was attributed to the visitor industry. That may
even be more for the neighbor islands.
Now let me just go back quickly to the increase in airfares. While it means higher cost of
doing business for MVB, it also means that it costs more for people to fly here. All the
more reason then that we need to be front and center against our competitors. We have to
make people want to pay the extra because it's a different experience than they'll get
anywhere else. Our entire marketing and PR message continues to move toward not just
culture, but those things that are authentic. Yes, people will want to enjoy the sand and
the surf because it is as splendid here as it is anywhere in the world, but showcasing what
they can't get elsewhere is the key and that's our message moving forward.
I'm certain that you will weigh the many choices on your plate and I hope you'll continue
to see the benefit of investing in the economic engine of our County.
And I'm happy to answer any questions. Mahalo.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Vencl. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Just on her presentation, if you could kind of explain
what fulfillment and collateral is.
MS. VENCL: Certainly. Collateral, I've given you several pieces of collateral. The planner is a
piece of collateral, our brochures are collateral, the maps are collateral. Fulfillment is
when someone requests those things, those items and we fulfill their request and we mail
it out to them. Does that answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, it does.
MS. VENCL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can you also address, I mean we often hear like, you know,
that the wages for hotel workers are low. Can, can you make some comment about that?
MS. VENCL: It's been probably.. .I would guess maybe five years since I've seen the latest
report on that, but I can tell you that they are not low. They are, they are all run by union
who negotiates those wages and they often, the, the numbers that are reported often do
not reflect tips in areas of waitress, waiters, bellmen. I can tell you that I have GMs who
say that, that when they retire, they'd just like to go be a bellmen and get the tips that are
made at the front desk.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

Questions, Members, for Ms. Venc1 on her presentation?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. I'm reading your presentation this morning and
what really caught my eye was that, yeah, people want to enjoy the sand and the surf
because it's splendid here, but the other things that we showcase, can you name a few or
important ones that, you know, that we really want to concentrate on?
MS. VENCL: Certainly. As you know, one of the things we did last year was we launched a
new campaign on health and wellness. So we showcased not just our resort areas and
their spas, but there's a lot of ethnic healing practices that go on in our, in our islands and
we showcase those. We bring writers here to experience, that the entire experience, you
know, we have everything from zip lining to parasailing to .. .I'm drawing a blank, I'm
sorry. There's just a lot of things to do. Let me, I want to move on. The reason I'm
drawing a blank is I'm trying... and excited about getting to our newest campaign which
is called Malama Maui. We launched that campaign about two weeks ago at the Ritz
Carlton and one of the directions that our office has chosen to move is to do more and
more about authentic cultural practices, and when we launched this campaign, we
launched it along with the, the arts and cultural season because this is a campaign that is
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going to encompass not just cultural aspects of our, of our community, but the ag aspect
of our community. For about five years I've been hearing from visitors, particularly in
the Japanese area, that they no longer want to travel in large groups, they want to travel in
small groups. They want to touch and feel the community. They want to touch and feel,
they asked me what. . .I want to see your flowers, I want to see how you grow them. I
want to see how you do Maui onions. So we .. .in conjunction with the Chamber of
Commerce have actually put together some new ag tours for these people to, to visit. We
have also been involved in, there's some new farmer markets coming up. And so we
really from this point forward are moving toward the real authentic cultural types of
things rather than, I don't know, maybe you want to call it glitz or, or anything like that.
We really want people to have an authentic experience. We have a lavender farm
upcountry that is new. We have a Surfing Goat Dairy that we want people to see. We
have a fabulous theatrical production in Lahaina called Ulalena. We do not sell these
items, we simply talk about the destination and what there is that we offer, but those are
the kinds of things that people ask us about and we share with them when they come. We
also, Mr. Pontanilla, do a great deal, that is not in my, in my...presentation today, on
"fam" trips. We have a lot of travel agents and travel writers that come here and we take
them around the island and we show them all of the historical places, try to share with
them what those places are about and give them the experience that a visitor would have
when they come here, so that when they go back and either write about us or talk to their
clientele, if you're a travel agent, they know what to say, they know how to sell us.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. So when are they going to bring the LPGA
on Maui?
MS. VENCL: Actually, that's the discussion going on.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... {chuckle} . ..
MS. VENCL: .. .{chuckle} . .. That's all I can tell you right now.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Ms. Vencl.
MS. VENCL: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You mentioned the concern with.. .1 guess the other
competitors out there. At this point in time, who is Maui's major competitors that we're
having to deal with or sort of keep a step ahead of?
MS. VENCL: Okay. Probably Mexico, Vegas and Caribbean. Now obviously Vegas is a
different experience, but I just happen to have some numbers and .. .these are 2002
numbers. Now I don't have anything later than that, but I do have some numbers about
what those entities spend on promotion. Mexico spends 44 million a year; Fiji, which I
-8-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 14, 2005

don't know that I would call it a competitor necessarily, but I thought that it was
interesting that they spend 6 Y2 million, which is about what we spend; Guam spends
13.6; Australia spends 100 million; Vegas spends 85; and the Caribbean spends
375 million a year on promotion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Wow, those are some heavy numbers.
MS. VENCL: So that's ... yeah. And the, the thing is the Mexico, depending on who it is that
you're talking to, the East Coast people think that it's easier, quicker, cheaper to go to
Caribbean. The west coast people think that it's easier, cheaper, quicker to go to Mexico.
But I will tell you that I visited with... our, our east numbers are up by 9 percent and
that's because we've targeted the east coast, and what's happened with those folks is that
they, they tell us once they've gotten here that they've had the same mindset. They've
had the mindset that oh, it's so far to go and it's such a long ride, but you know what,
once they come here what they tell me is that the experience is totally different than the
Caribbean experience and one that they enjoy better than the Caribbean experience. The
same thing happens with the Mexico experience.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And in terms of encour. .. , where, where you encourage
our visitors to go in terms of small businesses, do you emphasize ... plan out the places
where the so-called the locals go, that kind of thing? Do you also hype that as well to our
visitors?
MS. VENCL: That's a great question because we have a new newsletter that's put on our
website, and one of the things that we always put in that newsletter is what are the locals
doing, where do the locals eat because that's one of the questions that we get. So we
constantly interview, we interview those people and talk about them on a, on a monthly
basis so that people can see what it is 'cause you're right, that's, that's one of the
questions they always ask. We also put a recipe in there for a local food as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning.
MS. VENCL: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just to follow up with what you just said a few minutes ago in,
in addition to trying to focus in on specific areas of interest based on scenic, beauty
etcetera, yeah, what percent of the time is spent on, on educating the travel agents so they
can educate our visitors on the cultural sensitivity of, of our islands?
MS. VENCL: You know, I guess I'd, I would answer that by saying we have a three-prong
approach. We have advertising, we have sales which is that issue you're talking about,
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educating those travel agents, and PR, the writers, and we spend probably equal time on
all of those three-prong approaches-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. VENCL: --for all three of our islands. So we are constant, we have the marketing people
working on advertising, we have the sales people working day in and day out on travel
agents alone and wholesalers, and then we have our PR department working with the
writers.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So the new, your new program then, your Malama Maui
program... I'm, I'm taking it in addition to the ag components and the ag trips and visits,
etcetera, that the cultural part of it is also a big part of this new program that, that you're
wanting to start?
MS. VENCL: It certainly is and we have about maybe five, seven different press releases about
different parts of our culture that will come out periodically and, and we talk about our
historical areas, our historical buildings, how we got where we, where we are today in
some of those cases. I just did an interview on the, on a, on a... tape for a video that
we're showing on Continental Airlines and I discuss that, that very thing. Some of the,
some of the questions that were asked of me were cultural questions, and I did my
research and made sure that I was giving them the proper answers, but there are things
that people will now hear as they're traveling on Continental Airlines with, along with
our video.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And your cultural individual that is proficient in the Hawaiian
culture, you have such a staff onboard?
MS. VENCL: I do, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And that person is?
MS. VENCL: Kelii Brown, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much. And finally, Mr. Chair, Molokai,
Lanai also have part of your bud ... , part of the budget that's allocated to them. What do
you do to keep the whole tri-isle together so that your moving forward is consistent with
the directions that you, you're trying to schedule for the visitor industry on this, in this
County?
MS. VENCL: Mr. Mateo, we meet twice a month with our directors from Molokai and Lanai
and our staff that you see behind you today, and we talk strategy, we talk plan. We find
out what each of the islands are wanting to do, what their board members want them to
do, what kinds of plans they have, what are the targets they are looking at, how can we
assist. So we ...my, my office represents Maui Nui as a whole and then we pull in the
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directors from Lanai and from Molokai, we get their input, we figure out how each of
those fit into any particular campaign of any sort that we're doing. They always attend
our travel agent shows with us, our trade shows, they always attend our specialist
programs, our training of our travel agents, and they also go on all of the media blitzes
with us. So they're constantly connected. Now each of us has our own personality and
our own thing. So we do not push upon Molokai or Lanai the things that we think they
ought to do. We allow them to tell us and then we try to figure out how to work that into
whatever campaigns or whatever education we're doing.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. VENCL: When we, when we have those "fams" that come here, when we have the travel
agents that come, the writers that come, they also go to both Molokai and Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Yeah, I'm done, Chairman. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Good morning, Terryl. Thanks for coming.
MS. VENCL: Hi, Michelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In your breakdown here for your budget you show that
230,000 is spent on honeymoon and weddings. How is that spent? I'm assuming that
whatever advertising you do for weddings is included in the print advertising budget?
MS. VENCL: Yeah. No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No?
MS. VENCL: It's separated. This is the print advertising budget for honeymoon and weddings.
The advertising above that is general.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: General?
MS. VENCL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so why is there no money from the State funds
attributed to honeymoon and weddings? Is there a reason for that?
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MS. VENCL: Only that it's just because we've taken it out of County. It doesn't matter. I
mean it's, I can take some out of State, but we've chosen to put a larger share into general
print. One of the things that we have to do with the State is HTA, as you know, gives us
the funding and they have certain criteria, certain things that they push in any given year,
and we have to use our State dollars to stay within that range of things. Now romance is
corning up for them as one of their, one of their criterias that they want us to work on.
We have always worked hard and fast on honeymoon and romance whether they did or
not. So that's why you see more of a, of a... of a dollar amount in County than in State.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's what I was trying to get at, that there is
separate criteria for the State money.
MS. VENCL: Yes, there is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you give us a list ofthat criteria?
MS. VENCL: I can tell you right off the top of my head. For the upcoming year, for '06
calendar year it's what is called the avid traveler. That means the person who travels a
lot, the person who knows about traveling. It is romance, it is--help me guys--there's five
of them. Active traveler, that's the guy, the adventure kind of guy, the guy who wants to
experience zip line and some of those sorts of things; golf; and there's one ... culture and
arts is the fifth one.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sure they have, you know, specific definition for, you
know, they define this criteria further than that. If you could provide that for us, I'd
appreciate that, whatever they send to you-MS. VENCL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --for criteria. And then you said that the Caribbean spends
375 million on their marketing for tourism. Where did you get that figure?
MS. VENCL: I got it out of a study that was done by Joey Toy's group in Honolulu and I'm,
I'm guessing that because it's such an extravagant number, it includes cruise lines. They
spend a lot of money. My, my numbers don't include any cruise line, anything, but I
think that's where, I think that's what that's about.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Who is Joey Toy's group?
MS. VENCL: I have to look up his name for you, but I'd be happy to, I'd be happy to show you
the research paper.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would like to see that because that's an awful lot of
money and, and I'm sure most of that is spent by the industry and not by government.
Would you have a breakdown?
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MS. VENCL: I don't know about, I don't know about the government. I only know how ...we
did surveys to find out how much was spent on marketing for those areas I talked about.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But you don't know if any of these marketing dollars are
dollars spent by the industry as opposed to money subsidized by the government?
MS. VENCL: No, I don't. I do know that in most of these places they have a, a bed
tax .. .--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- .. .that the purpose of a bed tax is to assist with
marketing, but no I can't tell you for sure that that's the way it's divvied up in those
areas.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I'm sure if you added in the advertising dollars spent in
Maui County-MS. VENCL: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --by the industry, you'd come up with a whole lot more
than 6.5 million.
MS. VENCL: Yes, ma'am, you would.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: On the video you talked about with Continental Airlines ...
MS. VENCL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ...how did that come about and how much did that cost
you?
MS. VENCL: Frankly, we got a bargain because we can't generally afford to do airline, airline
ads. We work with a wholesaler that works through Continental Airlines, and I have a
lady in the back by the name ofLynn Erfer who just beats them to death, and we actually
in the end for this particular item, we were to have a two-minute segment and we ended
up six just because they decided to give it to us. We'd never know, but it is every
expensive and without partnership we couldn't do it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Partnership from?
MS. VENCL: From our wholesalers. You see, the airlines also are whole ... , have wholesale
subsidiaries and they, they look to book people to come to our islands and so they look
for partners to advertise with sometimes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So would you have a, a dollar breakdown on what that
cost?
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MS. VENCL: Lynn, do you know that dollar amount?
MS. ERFER (from the audience): .. .(inaudible). ..
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, ma'am. If, if you're going to provide us with the information, we
need you to corne down. You can corne to the podium; identify yourself for the record,
please.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Erjer approached the podium.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Pull it down.
CHAIR KANE: You can-MS. ERFER: Lynn Erfer, Director of Marketing for Maui Visitors Bureau, and the Continental
in-flight 6 Yz, 6 Yz-minute segment cost $2,500.
MS. VENCL: A steal.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And .. .! mean there must've been cost that was taken up
by somebody else.
MS. ERFER: Yes, we were very lucky. As Terryl mentioned, this is part of a wholesaler co-op.
You might see in front there's some examples of co-ops over there where we co-op with
such wholesalers as Apple Vacations and folks like that. We do an advertising program
with them and this was actually a benefit of the advertising program, and as Terryl
mentioned previously, we actually could only afford two minutes which was at $2,500.
And apparently, Terryl gave such a good interview and they get so excited, that the
interview went on for 6 Yz minutes and they decided to go ahead and give the 6 Yz minutes
for the two-minute price. We were just very lucky that the interview went well.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Again, what was the total cost?
MS. ERFER: For the, the total cost for the 6 Yz-minute interview is $2,500. It's going to be
played on all Continental flights that are three hours or more for the month of July.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you said it was a shared partnership. So did the
wholesalers kick in any money?
MS. ERFER: Not for the interview. Not for this particular interview. The, the video sections
which have played previous in this year, we split a two-minute segment with some other
folks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I'm done.
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CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members, for Ms. Erfer first? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Maybe for Terryl in regards to the last sheet of the, the
handout that you gave us.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla, hang on one second. Thank you very much, Ms. Erfer. Go
ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. The monies that like say.. .let's say
Mexico, for instance, they paid like marketing, $44 million in 2002. With the money that
they spend, what kind of increases do they have in, in regards to visitors going to
Mexico? Do you have a... a number that or the percentage every year that shows the
increase or decrease, anything like that?
MS. VENCL: No. Unfortunately, I don't have that number. It might be in this research paper
that I talked about, and I can look to see ifit's there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: If they're spending that kind of monies, you know, they,
they must have some increases on a yearly basis as far as-MS. VENCL: Oh, I'm certain they're having increases.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --people visiting, especially Las Vegas.
MS. VENCL: I agree with you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And if you could. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. My, my questions would be ... well, let me just ask
Ms. Vencl some questions since it is some of the comments we have heard from one
sector of our community. Is there ever a number that we would achieve where we would
be satisfied with, whether it be occupancy and if we hold 95 percent, as an example,
year-round that we have achieved pretty much saturation?
MS. VENCL: I suppose that there is a number. I don't know if I know what that number is,
quite frankly. I can tell you that what we have been able to do with the assistance of the
County dollars is to plan events and to, to target things where we have those valleys so
that we do maintain a consistent number. What that does is that helps to keep people
from being laid off or part time, it keeps everybody working all the time. We now are
running, probably a pretty consistent 81, 82 in an annual. We have peaks where we have,
you know, where we're running a little more than that.

- 15 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

April 14, 2005

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I, I just asked that because we hear comments, you know, when
is enough, enough... and I look to you as one of our professionals in the industry to help
us have a better understanding .. .is there such a...mark that if, if approached or achieved
we can say we have been pretty much at capacity?
MS. VENCL: Mr. Hokama, I think that inventory will dictate that, and while you say you look
to me as an expert, I also look to you as the, as the County planners to help us decide our
direction and our future and so ... and I, again, I go back to inventory will help dictate
what that is. Right now, you know, we haven't built any new inventory, any new hotels,
and I guess my feeling is that-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, that's not totally accurate. We may not have been building
hotels, but businesses, some businesses have been building timeshares.
MS. VENCL: Exactly. Exactly. But timeshares are not always available inventory.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Of which is one of the concerns with me. And, again, Maui as part,
as the main island of our County, our sister, main sister island is obviously very
successful. Okay. I continue to have a very unhealthy situation with Lanai. We went
from one industry with pineapple and we had hoped to be a diversified agricultural and
visitor plant and, of course, we now have just one visitor industry which continues for me
to be very limiting and very unhealthy because our island lives and breathes with the
visitor dollar as well as our employment situation. So for me the success ofMVB and the
success on Maui makes a big impact on how Lanai is able to compete and achieve in the
global market. So again with looking at your documentation I see Maui with about
18,000 rooms, Molokai with 106 rooms, Lanai with 363 rooms as far as under
accommodations. What would it take for us to be able to have up to par funding such as
my, our sister island of Molokai?
MS. VENCL: Up to par funding. Are you-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, Molokai is going to get about 470,000 in, in the, from your
handout-MS. VENCL: Exactly. Exactly.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --yeah? We're going to get 350,000, yeah?
MS. VENCL: Exactly, right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what does it take for Lanai to get more financial support?
MS. VENCL: Well, I guess for starters they would need to ask for that; they have not. And I'd
like to share with you, though, that while you see those numbers laid out there, that
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doesn't begin to show you the true picture. All of the fulfillment is paid out of the Maui
budget. That 356,000-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you-MS. VENCL: --is, is, includes Lanai and Molokai. So all of the money that Molokai and Lanai
have is basically spent for promotion. No ... the call center is paid out of the Maui
budget. The fulfillment is paid--that's the huge expense--I, I couldn't expect those
islands to pick up that cost because they'd have nothing left to do advertisement or
marketing. They continue to go with us on our blitzes and our trade shows, and we assist
in some of that cost. We also assist in some of the meetings and incentives area,
particularly for your island. So there's a lot of things that are hidden in some of those
numbers that don't truly reflect what the total number is that Lanai and Molokai actually
get.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, your comment. . .is educating for me. So thank you for
that.
MS. VENCL: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, one of the difficulties for our island to be more
successful--Iet me say it that way--is the challenge of transportation, and while I had, and
I had, and I thank you for your past support of a more successful link through our sister
island of Maui to be the hub and send out its spokes to Molokai and Lanai, the reality is if
you want to get to Lanai, you gotta go through Honolulu. Okay. That does not make me
happy, but that's the reality regarding the airlines industry. You have suggestions on how
Lanai can overcome this ... giant air bump in the sky per se?
MS. VENCL: Actually, Mr. Hokama, I work that almost everyday. Everyday I have
conversations with the Governor's Office and with people in the airlines. It's a, it's a
market issue and they tell me that unless they fill the planes, of course, it's a, it's a
chicken and egg thing. It's, you know, fill it first-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand that.
MS. VENCL: --and that kind of thing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand that. So-MS. VENCL: I continue-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What, what I'm, what. .. and I'm so happy you recognize that and,
and the State ... our former colleague and one of our supporters, Ms. Wienert,
understands that. So how does the phrase "the most exclusive island" help us to generate
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when it. .. by, by nickname that, you know, marketing chose? It'll, so it's already telling
them it's hard to get there 'cause it's exclusive; it's not for everybody.
MS. VENCL:
Well, I think, first of all, that's changed to the "enticing island"
now... (chuckle) . .. that you may be looking at an old map. But I believe that has
changed last year to the enticing island. I don't believe that that really sets people off
quite that way. I, I think that the people who chose that tag line--and by the way that
again was, was Lanai, not Maui, who chose that tag line--I think that they perceive that as
a, a special, it's a special place, so you want to go there because it's special, not that it's
exclusive and that it's out of range. And I think that a lot, I think that's the way a lot of
people do it. Let me explain one more thing to you. We are pushing heavy the ferry
systems as well for both your islands. Yours is a little easier than Molokai, of course.
But we are also, when we're training and educating our travel agents, we continue to talk
about the experience that they can have on, on the ferry, and that's a good experience.
When I go over there for board meetings, I travel on the ferry and it's just not as .. .it
takes a little more time, sometimes .. .I don't know about that, actually, than a flight. If
you have to go to Honolulu, it does. If you were able to fly to Maui, I'm not sure it does
take any more time. But we do push those and we do try to make people understand that
we have these sister islands and one of the, one of the big things, campaigns that we push
is Maui is so special because we have two sister islands where nowhere else in our State
can you go to those islands by both air and ferries. That's our campaign, if you will.
That's how we discuss getting to those islands. And when we say Maui and when I say
Maui a lot of times, I don't mean Maui Island, I mean all of us, and we all preach if you
will, market if you will, Maui Nui which is all three of our islands. By the way I, I'd like
to ... something just occurred to me-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. VENCL: --Lanai asked for some more money for next year and they already got it. So they
will, they will, they wanted to do a special something ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. VENCL: .. .in their budget next year. And if I get my budget, then they, then that will be
approved. I never tum down requests; I try to figure out how to make it work.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And thank you for that comment.
MS. VENCL: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I just wanted to continue to reinforce my concerns with the
Lanai program and not about. . .it's more about how, how we can make it more
successful being that we are overly dependent on its success. And I've used terms like
it's unhealthy, and to me it really is, but that's the reality of the economy of, of our island
there. Let me just ask a, a few more questions in your events area and then I. .. and I
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thank the Chair for my time. It's interesting that from the State budget is this part of
HTA's mentality that from the State funding only Hula Bowl and golf qualifies for
consideration and that basically the County continues to support the marathon, I would
say our big success, Maui Invitational Basketball, Xterra, Golf Hawaii and I'm not sure if
that is Mr.... gosh, he used to be with Kapalua-MS. VENCL: Rohlfing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Rohlfing. And let's see any other... especially of your, your other
markets. But is there a reason it's that, broken down that way, Ms. Vend?
MS. VENCL: Not from a State standpoint. That's, that's my doing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. 'Cause that-MS. VENCL: I just decide-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --I, I thought-MS. VENCL: That's my doing. And one other thing, some of those folks also go to HTA for
some of their dollars as well.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So-MS. VENCL: We're not the only guys who support them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Maui Invitational has-MS. VENCL: Some ofthem-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --HTA support?
MS. VENCL: And no they don't. They go, but they don't have it. .. .(chuckle) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which is interesting 'cause it is a premier event that I would say
has-MS. VENCL: I agree with you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --achieved and gone beyond the success of the Hula Bowl in my
opinion. I mean, look, we're getting six former national champions next year out of eight
teams. That's a great statement of the success of this event for Maui and Maui County.
Okay. So you get to decide which goes where?
MS. VENCL: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You have that flexibility?
MS. VENCL: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chainnan, for my opportunity.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chainnan. Ms. Vend, in your comments
regarding the ferry you sort of triggered something else that floats in the water for me and
that's the cruise ship industry. Where in your spending plan is, is your.. .I guess is Maui,
MVB's role with regards to targeting the cruise ship traveler. I, I don't know if that's
something you ...MVB will, you know, expand into as far as going towards that market
with regards to that, that type of traveler 'cause in your written testimony there seems to
be emphasis a lot more on the airline traveler. Can you share your comments with
regards to MVB's plan to track the cruise ship traveler because we've heard from
industry executives, cruise ship industry executives that they plan to, I guess, make more
trips to the islands itself. Can you give us your comments in that area?
MS. VENCL: We do not have any money that we use to market cruise ships, nor do I expect to.
They have a great deal of their own marketing dollars and I, I don't have any dollars there
and I don't intend to put any there. What we do do in the way of support is we treat those
visitors exactly the same way as we treat anyone else, and that has to do with their
experience. We greet them when they arrive, we provide music, we provide brochures,
planners, maps, and we, we assist them if they are unfortunately...have some sort of an
accident or anything that happens to them. We, we help them as we do any other visitor,
but we do not at this point share any marketing dollars with them, and I don't have that in
my immediate plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. VENCL: They have not asked and I think they have enough of their own.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. That's good enough for me. Thank you. Thank you,
Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they don't pay TAT.
MS. VENCL: No, they don't.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Terryl, there's 50,000 visitors a day on Maui. Do you
have any idea, can you qualify because I know your, your primary target is the high-end
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market. So would you have any idea what percent of those visitors would be considered
high end?
MS. VENCL: No. I don't think I could, I don't think I could break it down that way. I guess
my answer to you would be obviously probably the, the obvious answer is the resorts are
high end, all of them. But I think one of the things-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All ofthem-MS. VENCL: --that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me.
MS. VENCL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All of the resorts are considered high end?
MS. VENCL: Oh, I think all of the resort properties are pretty high end, yeah. I'm talking about
the Kaanapali strip, the Wailea strip and Hana-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they're relatively-MS. VENCL: --with the Lodge on Molokai and all ofthe properties on Lanai, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They're relatively all within the same room rate?
MS. VENCL: Urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you kind of give me a, a range?
MS. VENCL: ...no they, they go up and down. They average from I'd say 250 to 700. What I
would say-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so how many-MS. VENCL: --what I would like to say about that issue is that it's important to have diversity
and that I think that's one of the reasons that we're successful is that we have, if
somebody wants to have a budget kind of vacation, they can do that. If they want to have
the high end, they can do that. If they want to have whatever kind of experience, we
offer that. And so we have a lot of diversity in those numbers that you talked about that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So-MS. VENCL: --on any given day.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --so how many rooms, total rooms do the resorts offer?
MS. VENCL: I think it's about 9 to 10,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the remaining 40,000 visitors are staying in condos,
vacation rentals, whatever?
MS. VENCL: Well, no that's not 10 ... you wouldn't take, if you had 50,000 people on the
island, you wouldn't take-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, more than one person per room.
MS. VENCL: Yeah, exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MS. VENCL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it, it gives me an idea of the breakdown. So do you
have any idea how much money is being used by these various resorts in their marketing?
MS. VENCL: I don't have the latest number. I know that we did a survey about four or five
years ago, and I think it was something like $40 million plus.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is there a way we could find out that figure? It, would the
hotel-MS. VENCL: I'd have to, I'd have to do a survey.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would the Maui Hotel Association have that figure?
MS. VENCL: I don't know the answer to that. I could ask. I'd be happy to ask for you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Quickly. In your visitor headcount that. . .is one
indicator that we judge our success is our performances, is the timeshare numbers also
included in that-MS. VENCL: In the expend ... ,-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in your visitor count?
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MS. VENCL: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. VENCL: They're included in arrivals and expenditures and in length of stay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that information. One thing that stood out
and, and I'm going to ask you about it is your category... and it says here you're still
listed at. .. and, and so I notice it, is community relations. Okay. I have always felt
personally, not as a Member of this Council, but as a, just a person that grew up, where I
grew up on Lanai, that the visitor industry needs and, and to maintain its success needs to
continue to have community support. And while we have made conscious decisions in
Maui County to go toward the high end, the lUxury end, there's still a need for the
kamaainas, the local people, to be able to use our visitor plant facilities specifically
because we are extended families. There are still needs for us to go intrastate traveling.
There's not enough maybe family homes to accommodate the clan or the ohana, so we
need to also use visitor properties. With this concern of mine with the conversion to
timeshares, the high end of, of rooms .. .like on Lanai the room rates would, I would say
would go between hundreds of dollars, 300, $400 to the thousands, $3,500 for a suite for
one night. Okay. It doesn't help me if I had all of my members, who are my family,
needed to come to Lanai and my house is full already for them to come and attend a
family function 'cause the visitor plan is out-priced for my family. Is there ways that you
can help work with the industry to kind of still remember that the kamaaina market is still
an important component to maintain the success of our visitor industry?
MS. VENCL: The condominium-type property, I believe, still has and advertises kamaaina
rates. I'm not sure that the Four Seasons and the Grands and those kind of things, I think
they probably have kamaaina rates. I think it might be difficult to get them sometimes
during peak, peak times. I have long advocated that we need a different type of property
closer to central area possibly and you folks approved such a property for this very kind
of thing, not just kamaaina business, but also for businesses, people who come here to
sell to business. They have nowhere to go either sometimes but out to the, to the resorts,
and so I've been anxiously awaiting that Marriott Courtyard Hotel out by the airport
and/or the expansion of the Maui Beach so that we would have more inventory there and
help us with that very kind of thing because I know it's a struggle. We, we're pretty
resourceful all of us residential people and we seem to find ohana, we find community
centers sometimes, and we find gyms I find out occasionally where we can, where we can
put folks when they come in, for example, for athletic playoffs and that sort of thing. But
I really think that we have a need for something like a Holiday Inn type experience,
something that's a little, little less expensive than our resort areas, and I would, I've
advocated that, I think you have approved that. We're just waiting for it to happen.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, thank you for my opportunity.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members. And before I recognize Mr. Pontanilla, I, I'd like to take
this opportunity to recognize some of our high school students in the audience, Members.
We have with us several high school students from the different schools throughout, I
believe, the island and they are with the Travel Academy, and we've had the honor
of... the academy being with us for many, many years. Good morning. Is there
somebody here? I think we have one of our instructors. Members, if there's no
objections, I'd like you to just come forward and maybe introduce yourself and give us
maybe a little twist of what, what you folks or a little flavor of what, what the students
are doing or, or preparing themselves for. Come this way, over here and right to the
podium and introduce yourself for the record. I'm catching her off-guard, Members, but
me and her go way back, so it's okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members, for allowing this.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. San ada approached the podium.

MS. SANADA: Good morning everyone. My name is Laurie Sanada. I'm the Maui High
School--they changed our name--it's Academy of Hospitality and Tourism Program at
Maui High School. It's a special two-year program for high school students that are
seriously interested in pursuing a career in the travel industry. Mr. Kondo(?) is our social
studies teacher. He and I have brought our seniors here. We were invited by Lani
Correa, our Advisory Board President, who's the Executive Director of the Maui Hotel
Association, and I recognize Terryl Venc1 there, who was our past Advisory Board
President. Basically, the program prepares them to hopefully stay here in the islands.
That's our main goal. So that instead of going off to the mainland, they stay here and
they find good paying jobs. We're preparing them for managerial positions, not the entry
level type of thing. A lot of times many people have the misconception that in the travel
industry the only jobs that are available are the low paying jobs, but we want our students
to stay here in the islands.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. SANADA: Any other questions?
CHAIR KANE: '" (chuckle) . ..
MS. SANADA: Thank you, Dain.
ALL: .. . (chuckle) . ..
MS. SANADA: I was told I didn't have to talk today.
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CHAIR KANE: That's okay. Well, we set you up for that, Ms. Sanada.
Members ... Ms. Sanada, corne. There might be a question or five for you.

Thank you.

COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .(chuckle). ..
CHAIR KANE: Councilmember Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MS. SANADA: Oh, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Ms. Sanada, and it's nice to see you here and I
really appreciate the emphasis you're placing on educating our youngsters or exposing
them to the more well-paid positions in, in the industry itself. I think it's great you're
doing this, and I just would like to disclose to the body that Ms. Sanada and I were
classmates at Maui High School and former teaching colleagues as well. Thanks for
keeping up the great work, Laurie.
MS. SANADA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions for Ms. Sanada?
MS. SANADA: Any other questions? --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... oh, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I have a question. What type of positions are you,
that are well paid are you focusing on?
MS. SANADA: A lot of them are interested in becoming hotel managers, a lot of them have
aspirations of becoming executive chefs also, and some of them that like to travel want to
be flight attendants. I think the glamour of traveling with the, the flight benefits is still a
big draw for a lot of them, but we're focusing more on the managerial positions in the
hotels and food and beverage industries.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
management?

So your program allows them to get a degree in hotel

MS. SANADA: We work hand in hand with Maui Community College, so they take a MCC
course while still in high school. It's ajob preparation course and during the summertime
they can get a cooperative learning education, that's working in a job in the industry. In
the past before 9/11, I was able to place students in the hotels. After 9/11 it was very
difficult to place them in the hotels. So ... the main internships now are at the airlines, at
Pleasant Holidays either as a sales associate, a briefer, and some of 'ern have been
working in the industry for a while. So ifit's travel related, they can also keep their jobs.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if they go from your high school program to MCC, can
they then go to say UH and get a degree in hotel management?
MS. SANADA: Yes, they can.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. SANADA: In fact, some of them have been accepted at. . .I believe one of my students got
accepted to the UH TIM program already and another one was accepted to HPU and their
TIM program.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And, Members, TIM is travel industry management, which is one
of the colleges for both of the university systems. Thank you, Ms. Sanada. Okay.
MS. SANADA: Any other questions?
CHAIR KANE: No, we're good. Thank you very much.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR KANE: She actually was prepared to respond to more, you know. . . .(chuckle). ..
Anyway, we just want to welcome all of you students being with us this morning. We're
having a discussion with Ms. Terry! Venc1 who's the head of the Maui Visitors Bureau
and who provides ... opportunities for us to get people to come to the islands and ... do
their thing. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. I have two questions. One is regarding the
relationship of the visitor police with Hotel Association and with MVB. Could you tell
us a little bit about that program?
MS. VENCL: Certainly. We have what we call Visitor Industry Police Officers on the island of
Maui. We actually started this program probably seven, eight years ago and what we had
was a grant from the Feds to start this program, and what this program is about is making
sure that our policemen when they answer a, a call for a crime or an accident that, that
they handle our visitors, I guess for lack of a better word, with kid gloves. We want to
make sure that if they've got a terrible experience, that they go away from here
understanding that people care about them and that we are, we'll do everything that we
can to help them. So with the help of a Federal grant several years ago we got this
VIPOs. These guys are just extraordinary. There are, there have been two for the west
side and two for the south side. We are now down to one on a regular full-time basis.
The others have been put back in patrol because of the need. But these guys are called,
for example, by our hotels or by whoever, 911, whoever gets a call to go and assist
someone. They may, they may sometimes handhold them to the hospitals, they may take
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their families and move them from the west side. If they're staying at the Westin let's
say and a family member has to be hospitalized, they don't want to travel back and forth,
they want to be close to the family member, we work with local entities to try to find a
place to put those people up. They, they work. .. and those folks work with the Maui
Visitors Bureau to make this whole thing happen. It ties in to what you might know
better as V ASH out of Honolulu. Long before there was a V ASH in Honolulu, this
program existed in Maui. They model VASH after Maui. At that time we called it the
Victim Witness Program and it was run through the Prosecutor's Office, still is that piece
of it. So if it's a crime, we still deal with the Prosecutor's Office. We, these gentlemen
come to us, they tell us what's happening. They, they do a lot of drownings,
unfortunately. We deal with the families. We often have to change their flight schedules,
we try to get the airlines to waive the fees that it cost to change flights. We literally
house them sometimes. We help in any way that we can to assist these folks. If they've
had theft and all of their belongings are gone, they need an I.D. to get on an airplane, we
assist them in how to make that happen. We give them a little check-off, a slip of paper
that tells 'em how to cancel their credit cards, who to call first, who to call second, who
to call third, and these Visitor Industry Police Officers actually put that little piece of
paper together. And we found now that I think the Police Department uses it for
everything they do, not just for the VIPOs because it's so helpful to people.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you. I k.l1ow with the credit card thing a lot of
hotels on the mainland do that, they have a little thing that tells you where to call and it's
very, very helpful. The other question, well, it's really not a question, more a comment,
under community relations, I guess following up on what Mr. Hokama was saying, that I
think because--and we've talked about this before--because so much of our economic
well being is due to the visitor industry, it is our economic engine, and yet sometimes I
have the feeling that the community doesn't understand just how much the visitor
industry means to them. I mean that goes from, you know, local drivers or otherwise
flipping the bird to, to some tourist who might be in the wrong lane because they wanted
to go here and now they want to go there. That to some of just the ...the attitudes about
do they feel safe at a local park because there's all these local families. You know, I
think maybe 20 years ago there was a campaign that was done probably by the State that
had some information, in fact they had a little thing they played on the television that was
following a $20 bill that an employee had gotten as, in their paycheck as, as part of their
work at a hotel, and then it showed how that $20 went all the way around through the
community. I think, if nothing else, that should be revived so that people have a better
understanding of just what the industry means to all of us on Maui County. I mean
people say well, I'm not associated with the visitor industry. Well, let me just talk about
the schools, the teachers. If we didn't have the visitor industry here, we wouldn't need
the many teachers that we have because we wouldn't have the employees, and I, you
know, I happen to know this, I was a teacher at Maui High. By the way, I teached there.
ALL: .. .(chuckle) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But it affects even that. So, you know, it's all interrelated
because the employees, the economic base, the trickledown effect you talk about, all of
the services that are provided. I mean even the people at McDonald's, they depend on
visitors and yet they feel disconnected from that for some reason, and I would think
because of our extended families almost every, every person has a relative that works
either for or through the, the visitor industry. So I think that needs to be part of our, our
campaign and our responsibility to get the community to understand just what it is and
it's, and, and it's not just oh, you know, Maui County just happens to like Terryl so they
give her 3.5 million. I mean that's not what this is about. This is about supporting the
major, major economic engine in our com ... , in our community, in our County, in our
State. So I, I would like to see something developed along those lines, and I don't know
if you can work with the HTA in doing this 'cause I'm sure it's the same on every island,
but, you know, maybe that's not something that comes out of your budget, but if you'll
pass that along to the HTA or, or to Ms. Wienert that we need to get some focus back in
this area 'cause I think we need it now. Thank you.
MS. VENCL: I'd be happy to do that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Pontanilla, I'm sorry, I was remiss in recognizing
you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I kind of lost what I was going to
say, but it just came back to my mind here.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... {chuckle} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I know Mr. Hokama touched basis on the community,
community relations side, and I was just wondering--I don't know if you know the
answer or not--you know, we look at the kamaaina traveler and, and both of 'em stay in
Kahului most of the time because it's not only convenient but it's cheap. Years ago the
Maui Sun Hotel had the same idea as far as servicing the kamaaina. Would you know
why that hotel went under because the concept that they had was that they were going to
build this hotel so that some of the people that would come over would be the high school
students, you know, competing in sport, sporting activities as well as business folks. You
got any comment to that in regards why they failed?
MS. VENCL: Market drives the business. If the market isn't there, they can't stay in business.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So as far as the marketing-MS. VENCL: I know that we all think that there's this big market because we're each touched
by it of course, but Maui Sun is a, is a real prime example of that. You're exactly right,
they set out to be that kamaaina hotel, actually even Maui Coast in the beginning and
now Maui Coast is all visitors almost. It's, it's market driven and I know that's not a
very satisfying answer, but it's the only one that I, that I have.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So do you folks get involved whenever you see a hotel
that's probably going under and, and the possibility of supporting that one property?
MS. VENCL: No.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You don't?
MS. VENCL: Our job and our mission is to promote the destination, the environment, the
islands, the ... everything that there is to do here. We do not work with any given entity,
be it a hotel or a business or we don't promote one person or one thing over another
thing. That's not our job. I, I guess if I were even asked, I don't know exactly how I
would do that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And we'll go ahead and start wrapping it up, Members, if you can
prepare for your final line of questioning. We, we need to move on. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Just one, one question. The last
couple of nights we've been hearing from our representatives of our Aquatics
Department, our lifeguards, and what is the MVB doing about educating our visitors
about water safety because when I look at your promotionals here you have the beautiful
beaches and the calm waves and when our visitors come here, the last thing that tends to
be on their mind is water safety; whereas we, we here as local residents we know the
realities of the currents and everything else. It was told to us that many of the callouts for
water safety, you know, rescues ... a high percentage, roughly around 90 percent, you
know, maybe nine out of every ten calls involved a visitor. What is the MVB doing to
educate I guess our visitors in terms of water safety and is that part of your video? When
I look at the expenditures for your video promotionals, is that included in your
presentation as well?
MS. VENCL: No. We have, we have video actually on Paradise TV, they talk about it, that runs
through all the hotels 24 hours a day. All of the hotels also have compendiums on their
desks that talk about the risks and the threats, and we also have travel tips, safety tips in
our planners and in other kinds of collateral that we send out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So it's pretty much status quo standard then, and, and I
just say that because, you know, as we get more and more visitors the probabilities for
more incidents increase so and it impacts the County resources.
MS. VENCL: You know, unfortunately, for visitors sometimes they, they really do go on
vacation-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
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MS. VENCL: --but they forget that, you know, things happen wherever you go and sometimes
they're, they, they get so relaxed here that they forget to mind their Ps and Qs and to, to
really be safe. Things that they might think of doing at home, they might not think of
here.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Terryl-MS. VENCL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --in your presentation you referenced a request for 200,000
more dollars that, that your agency could use. Would that be specifically for
implementation of a program to keep us top of mind? Is this 200,000 the Malama Maui
program or what specifically is the requested increase for?
MS. VENCL: Cost of doing business spread across everything.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Got it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. You mentioned Channel 7; who pays for that?
MS. VENCL: Channel 7 pays for that. I don't pay for that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Channel7?
MS. VENCL: Paradise TV. Yeah, Paradise. Oh, it's their company name-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They're like an independent company-MS. VENCL: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and they get revenues from advertisers?
MS. VENCL: I assume that. I don't know where they get their revenues, quite frankly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But they as gratis allow you to do a video on water safety?
MS. VENCL: Well, it's not really our video, it's theirs. They put out the, they put out a, a video
that, that gives travel tips.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MS. VENCL: It's part of what they do. They talk about shopping, they talk about all the
different activities and the different things to see and part of that is safety, and it, and it
talks about locking cars at beaches, it talks about swimming, it talks about all of the
different things.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, because I know various snorkeling industry people
had been trying to get for several years a video on, either on...well, mostly on the
airlines to inform visitors about the impacts they could have by standing on our coral
reefs, and they've not been successful. So that kind of leads me to .. .I know that your
basic purpose and premise is to sell the islands and, and to market Maui as a visitor
destination, but hand in hand with that is the impact that comes from these visitors. And
I'm just wondering if there's anything that the Maui Visitors Bureau does besides
marketing to help alleviate the impact, i.e., the Maui Revealed issue that was recent, you
know, revealing areas that normally are only visited by kamaaina now being inundated
with visitors. So there is an impact that comes with this marketing, and I'm just
wondering if, if there's any efforts on behalf ofMVB to mitigate any of those impacts or
if you don't see that as part of your mission?
MS. VENCL: Certainly I think that impacts are, are part of our mission. I guess I would say
that we do that in a lot of ways. If you take Maui Revealed, would I put out something
that says don't use that book and don't go there? No, I would not. But would I
recommend it to the people who to come to visit us, no I would not. So I guess that in
my mind is mitigation. I mean I can't, I don't. . .I cannot tell people what to write or
what not to write, but when I am writing, I am checking my sources and I'm checking to
try to do the right and the best thing for Maui. Other kinds of impact that we deal with
everyday, everyday in our office are going back to things like accidents, whether
somebody drowns, whether somebody has a car accident, whether somebody has a heart
attack. We deal with those off, those issues on a daily basis in our office. We try to put
out information to all travelers about the airport experience, the TSA reminders. You
saw one today in the newspaper about lighters--don't bring your lighters, don't bring
matches. You can't go through the security check anymore with those items. We try to
make every, we try to deal with all of the impacts and make the experience flow as
smooth and easily as it can, and we do it in many, many different ways and many
different fields. The issue of putting something on an airline, a video on an airline is just
not something they will do. We've been there .. .I can't even tell you how many times.
That time is sold to commercial entities and they just, they don't do it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, let's ... Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just quickly. I believe my colleague, Mr. Molina brought up the
topic of the cruise industry, Ms. Vencl. There, is there spending captured in the reports
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that you produce regarding total visitor expenditures and return of resident investment
within our community in the various areas?
MS. VENCL: It is captured in expenditures. It can also, if you look on, if you go into the
DBEDT site, you can also see it broken down per cruise versus airline kind of visitors
and you can see what that difference is, but it is in the total of the expenditures. What
they do, what DBEDT does is they put. .. you know that survey that you fill out on the
airline each time you come and go? Well, they put that same type of survey--I don't
know it's the same one--but a same type of survey in the cabins on the cruise ship to gain
their information. So it's pulled into the mix, it's pulled into the, to the total numbers and
then they separate it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So it's part of the total expenditures of the visitor?
MS. VENCL: Yes, it is.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. VENCL: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Ms. Tavares, final comment?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: One quick one. You talked about you're not marketing
what, you know, directly to the cruise ship plans. Do you do marketing directly to
timeshare owners?
MS. VENCL: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No? Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members-MS. VENCL: Just like I, I'm sorry, just like I don't directly do hotels.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MS. VENCL: I mean I don't do anybody directly. I work on the destination itself.
CHAIR KANE: Members, if there are any further questions for Ms. Venc1 regarding her
request, please pose them in writing. We'll make sure she gets them and she can respond
to us in a timely manner. Ms. Venc1, thank you very much for you and your, your
resource personnel for being here this morning with us. Members, we're going to call for
a recess and we'll reconvene at 10:45 a.m. This Committee is in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
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RECESS:

10:32 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:54 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Members, we are reconvened. Thank you very much. There has
been an adjustment in the schedule, Members. We did go a little long on MVB and we
didn't anticipate that, and so what we'd like to ask you to consider is we'd like to bring
Water in now and Water is in the process of gathering up their troops as far as division
heads.
With respects to the Humane Society, we'd like to ...without, without any objections,
we'd like to ask you if you do have any pressing issues that you need to have responded
to, we'd ask that you put those responses in writing and then we can get answers back to
you very timely. Ms. Bouchard is here, she has been waiting, and she does understand
our need to, to press forward, and she has been kind enough to offer her, her cooperation
in responding to any questions that either any of you may have. She is here, we are
trying to gather up Water in the meantime. Is there anybody here that needs to ... ask any
questions for a oral response at this time? We can go ahead and take that on for, for
some, a little bit of time, but we'd like to move on and get into the operations of the
Water Department. Anything pressing for any Members? And if not, again, we can put
'em in writing and get a timely response, that Ms. Bouchard has told that she will do.
Okay. Hearing none, Ms. Bouchard, thank you very much for your presence. We
appreciate you accommodating the schedule of the, of the Committee.
Members, we're going to wait until Director Tengan approaches and that should be any
minute now. So we're going to call a recess and we'll reconvene in a few minutes, and
let's say right before 11 o'clock. We are in recess ... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:56 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:00 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, let's reconvene. Members, thank you for the adjustment.
We're with the Department of Water Supply with, with respects to operations, grants,
rates, and fees, etcetera. We do have a handout that was just given to you dated
April 14t \ and this hopefully will be the Department's way of having us follow along
with them as we go through the review of the operations and the other areas. Before we
open it up, Ms. Morrison, you have anything before we move forward? Thank you.
Members, any questions or comments procedurally on how we're going to move
forward? Seeing none, Director Tengan, good morning and thank you for being here.
MR. TENGAN: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members. I have here with me Ms. Holly
Perdido, our Fiscal Officer and in the gallery we have Walt Hager, our Water Treatment
Plant Supervisor; Jeffrey Pearson, Deputy Director; Bobby Vida, our Field Operations
Chief; Paul Seitz, our Water Treatment Plant Chief; Alva Nakamura, our Engineering
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Program Manager; Joe Mendonca, our Plant Operations Chief; and Helene Kau, our
Assistant Fiscal Officer. With that, Mr. Chair, we'll. . .I believe, excuse me, I believe we
have distributed to the Members a worksheet that we've prepared to show the variances
from the prior year's budget and we're open to questions now, and if it affects the other
divisions here, if you'll allow me the .. .the opportunity, I'll call them up to answer any
specific questions the Members might have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Director. Is Ms. Perdido going to be providing us with any
comments with respects to the various program areas and highlighting or you just would
like us to start firing away? Ms. Perdido ... giving you a chance for opening comment.
MS. PERDIDO: Okay. Good morning.
CHAIR KANE: Good morning.
MS. PERDIDO: Basically, we went through and gave the variances, as you all have in your
hand, of each of the different divisions. What we can do is any questions I guess per
division, the division heads can come up, as George said, and we can answer them
specifically. And I guess that's probably it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we'll go from there. Members, we'll start with the Director's Program
on page 18-5 of your Details within their operations, and they've noted the $35,000
change ... 735,690 from '05 current fiscal year to the 771,340 for the proposal.
Ms. Anderson, questions in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I was just going to say that when they say variances,
actually they mean an increase over 'OS?
CHAIR KANE: They have plus marks, so the pluses would indicate that, yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Let's just skip page 1 already.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Well ...we'll make sure everybody agrees with that, Ms. Tavares .

. . . {chuckle} . ..

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's so small.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions in this area? Okay. Hearing no questions, Members, second
page, 2 of 3, we have a $310,000 increase under Water Resources & Planning Program.
And I believe, Director, this is Ms. Kraftsow?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, it is.
CHAIR KANE: And I know she, she had notified the Chair, Members, that she had to get some
eye drops for her eye 'cause she had some issues. So we'll defer on that until she is able
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to get back to us shortly. So if we can move to the next area of questions which is the
Water Treatment Plant Program of $835,000 increase. Members, the floor is open for
questions in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could we, could we have further explanation of this, this
area for the increases?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ifwe can ask the Division. Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'd like to call up Paul Seitz, our Water Treatment Plant Division
head.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
NOTE:

Pause.

MR. SEITZ: Good morning, Mr. Chair. The question again?
CHAIR KANE: And if you could identify yourself for the record, sir.
MR. SEITZ: Yes, my name is Paul Seitz, Water Treatment Plant Chief.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Paul, if you could go, go through for us on the, under
the Operations, the water and electricity and diesel cost increases.
MR. SEITZ: Okay. The first one, the water cost, this is for the water or the raw water that we
purchase for the plants. We have a $526,000 increase. This is for the lao Water
Treatment Facility that came on-line.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So that's the increased capacity that you have for
that?
MR. SEITZ: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. And is ... go one with the electricity and
the diesel.
MR. SEITZ: Well, actually the next three categories of electricity, diesel and the gasoline,
they're all the fuel related--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: To that project?
MR. SEITZ: Yeah, as the cost has gone up, obviously...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. SEITZ: .. .it's been, you know, kind of passed along.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. The, the water that you purchased from
C. Bureau [sic], Brewer. .. how much capacity does that, increased capacity does that
represent?
MR. SEITZ: This represents approximately a...the 3 million gallon capacity. We just added a
third filtration unit up there which gave us roughly an additional million over what we
had previously.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So previously we had 3 million or 2 million?
MR. SEITZ: No, previously we had 2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So we're realizing an additional million?
MR. SEITZ: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And...will this be under the purview of the Commission
on Water Resource Management in any way?
MR. SEITZ: Not to my knowledge, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because I know there is a petition right now for the stream
flow in that area.
MR. SEITZ: This is an agreement between us and Brewer to withdraw water from the lao Ditch.
Now I'm, I'm fairly confident that what. . .I know Brewer has agreements or permits with
the Department of Land and Natural Resources for the diversion on the ditch and the
stream flows and that sort of thing, but we're not a party to that particular agreement or to
that particular permit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they already have a current permit for this diversion
and we're taking from them a portion of that?
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MR. SEITZ: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So with the additional requirements through the C. Brewer
agreement, what does your, does the expense come for us per gallon in cost?
MR. SEITZ: Our current agreement with Brewer is 48 cents per 1,000 gallons.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I mean by the time it hits the consumer, what's our cost?
You're treating it. . .--(CHANGE OF TAPE)--. .. so what's the cost?
MR. SEITZ: Okay. That particular report I don't have in front of me. We have a cost of a
production report. Let me see if Holly has it. No, unfortunately we don't have that, but
we can get that to you. But if memory serves me correct, it's roughly about $1.75, $1.85
a 1,000 gallons, but that's leaving the treatment plant. That's ... you still have the
distribution costs and, you know, that's just what it costs us to make it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: About $1.70?
MR. SEITZ: Some, somewhere around there. I'll have to get you the report to get the, you
know, the actual number.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. 'Cause I'm just trying to understand what the rate increase is
on the consumer side.
MR. SEITZ: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Gallon per thous ... , that's per 1,000 gallons right?
MR. SEITZ: Per 1,000 gallons, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I want to go back to this petition because it doesn't
sound like you guys are really aware of it. Is anyone in your Department tracking this
because this is a petition to establish instream flow standards for the streams that are
being used to divert water from, and there could be an impact depending on the
Commission's decision.
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MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, yes, we're aware of the petition by Earth Justice and the Na
Wai ...Na Wai Eha group petitioning the State Water Commission to establish in-flow,
in-stream standards at the, the Waikapu, lao, Waihee and .. .I believe it's the Waiehu
Streams. Anyway, we're keeping track of that; Corp. Counsel is also on top of that. And
yes, they're, you know, a decision by the Water Commission could impact. .. the lao
Water Treatment Plant; however, we're, we're fairly confident that whatever we've
agreed with Wailuku Ag we'll be able to obtain that quantity of water... 'cause one of the
priorities for in-stream uses or diversions would be for municipal purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right, but they still have to first establish a minimum
in-stream flow for the biota of the stream. So are you .. .I mean a million gallons,
hopefully there will be enough leftover to allow that million gallons to be further treated.
But the expenditure of this half a million dollars for that purpose, when do you intend to
go forward with that. .. before or after the in-stream flow standard decision has been
made?
MR. TENGAN: Well, we're, we're in the process of... acquiring another unit, but I
believe ... hang on. .. Five hundred thousand is for our current capacity, right?
MR. SEITZ: Yes.
MR. TENGAN: This $526,000 is for our current capacity using, using three units and not the
fourth unit. So it's .. .it's an agreement we have with Wailuku Ag to, to ...have delivered
to us 3.2 million gallons per day, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... 3.2 and currently you, within the system is 2 million?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: But we only pay for what we ... take from the ditch.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're taking 2 million?
MR. TENGAN: At the present time, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area, Water Treatment Plant Program
with the increase and the ... explanation that was given? Hearing none, Members, ifthere
are any further questions, please have 'em forwarded. Mr. Seitz, thank you very much. I
appreciate your presence.
MR. SEITZ: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Why don't we bump back, Members, to the Water Resources and Planning
Program. Ifwe can have Ms. Kraftsow, Director Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Yes. I'll have Ms. Kraftsow respond to any questions that Members may have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, and the breakdown is on 18-17 of your Details, and
although they've highlighted the part for their gains are, you have a full picture of the B
account. And, Ms. Kraftsow, if you can, please identify yourself for the record.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Ellen Kraftsow with Water Resources and Planning Division of the Water
Department.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions in this area, $310,000 increase?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, if Ms. Kraftsow would explain the increase for the
professional services and the conservation areas.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Well, professional services, the biggest increase is $100,000 for the
East Maui Watershed Partnership Protection. We've traditionally been giving 100,000 to
the Nature Conservancy for the Waikamoi Preserve. With the East Maui Watershed
Partnership they're able to protect a much greater portion of that preserve, and that also
comes up later in, I guess, in the grants discussion. And then the other 19 is basically
broken down 5,000 more for Molokai, 5,000 more for West. So it's minor changes other
than that one.
What about the conservation, 180,000 ... I'm sorry,
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
conservation area of 180,000?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Right. Just to give you some perspective, the Residential Demand
Conservation Program at MECO, for instance, just the residential portion alone is a
million a year, and we've traditionally had about 60,000 which covers our advertising
and our fixture giveaways. So we're looking to begin with the Water Use and
Development Plan process, we've been evaluating benefit costs of different conservation
measures and we'll continue with that and we're looking to begin expanding that
program. And this particular proposal includes a grant to the Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens which is a key factor for landscape conservation to have a central education
facility, and we've been supporting them and built their nursery for years, leak detection
survey for our systems and possible rebate program, pilot rebate program that we've been
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in discussions with MECO ... and I'm drawing a blank on the name of the other agency,
it's a charitable agency, about a preliminary washing machine, possible retrofit or other
retrofit toilets.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: How much is, how much is being allotted for the Maui Nui
Botanical Gardens?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Maui Nui Botanical is ...
CHAIR KANE: Fifty? And I'm sorry for inteIjecting, Members. There is a March 29th
communication. If you recall, we rescheduled the Water Department-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --from that first day, and so in that handout-MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, 50,000.
CHAIR KANE: --there's a-MS. KRAFTSOW: It's at the bottom of that.
CHAIR KANE: --yeah, there's a listing-MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --a professional service contract for '06, and that provides us with the additional
description and the appropriation amounts, along with the title.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Thank you. It's March 29th from Director Morrison and then behind it it
has the professional services contract listings, and then behind that there's a couple of
pages of more detail. .. pretty extensive detail anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have a question for the Budget Director.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Ms. Morrison, these grants that are going to Botanical
Garden and the watershed groups, are they going to be rearranged in there, in the budget
at some point?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair. Yes, Councilmember Tavares, I am going to be working with the
Department and, and we've already had this conversation, but to have the grants listed as
line items in their budget as opposed to lumping them into the professional services part.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And we're working with Staff on, yes, on, on that for the proposal
that will be coming out. Further questions for Ms. Kraftsow? Mr. Hokama followed by
Ms. Anderson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How does your req ... , or request correlate to your ability to take care
of the Water Use and Development Plans?
MS. KRAFTSOW: A lot of. .. our budget request is, I think has 11 positions and right now we
have ...because of where we are located, which we hope to be moving in just a couple of
weeks now, or not a couple, about four weeks, but. .. the additional staffing is the main
thing that will help. And so part of our equipment and all that is, is computers and desks
for the staff and so forth.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what can we expect at the end of the '06 budget year?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Hopefully we'll have a good number of the staff hired, if not all II, at least
as close to it as we can get, and once we get those people onboard and trained we'll
hopefully start moving a lot faster. I. ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So regarding the Water Use and Development Plans update or
revisions, you're telling me I still need to wait years?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, the, the schedule that we have right now is actually designed that way
not so much in part because we're slow, but in, in larger part because we actually have
trouble keeping up with it because we're slow, but in larger part it's designed that way to
in ... , include the full public process that's involved in the IRP framework that the State
provided to us. So a lot of that time is dedicated to the IRP framework. The Central
Maui, Up country which are the sort of biggest issues right now, the current schedule has
been done in about a year from now, not four, but the overall whole public process for
acceptance and completion and everything is a four-year schedule. I'm not sure if that
answers your question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I'd like to know some target dates because I would like to hold
your feet to the fire, you know. I mean it's in the Charter, it's in the ordinance. We were
asked to give additional support financially ...
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... to make it happen. We have provided so. And for me, Ijust need
to know when we can expect performance and results.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. We can send you a schedule, send you the schedule.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I'd like to follow up on Mr. Hokama's
questions about the Water Use and Development Plan. You have $40,000 appropriated
for professional services this next fiscal year and it says allowance for extra studies as
needed and identified by Water Use and Development Plan contract or process. So this
will increase that contract by how much money, I mean will increase that contract to a
total amount of?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Oh, see ...the, the allowance is not necessarily always on that contract. For
instance, one of the things that we're using it for is .. .in, in regards to the Na Wai Eha
we're going to be having some research done on the traditional water rights of Hawaiians
and, and some translation done to identify those. In other cases it's been, the money is
for things like improving the, the relation that we have between customer class and
location data which is not really part of that contract and mayor may not even be
contracting that portion, but and...but which would certainly help not only our rate
design but very much so our planning process. So this is allowance for studies to do
things that we need. One thing we've been wanting for a long time is to tie customer
classes to some kind of higher level SIC code because there are many, many good models
built and demand for casting tools built if you can get that better level of data for your
customers. So these are all classed under the Water and Use Development Plan
allowance because they all will in fact improve not only the current but the ongoing
future Water Use and Development Plan, but they won't necessarily increase the current
contract.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how much is the current contract?
MS. KRAFTSOW: About 328,000 which is actually, compared to many water utilities, pretty
inexpensive for one of these processes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, the Big Island they've, they've contracted
with Fukunaga & Associates for 250,000 and their Water Use Development Plan is
nearly complete.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: The process that they're doing ... they.. .I spoke to their lead planner and to
their consultant, both, about what they're doing and how they're doing it that fast, and
they are not doing the statewide framework IRP. They're just doing a plan, and that
would be more comparable to like taking the long-range capital plan and turning it into a
book with explanations and ... better system inventory.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How can they do a plan that isn't, isn't following with the
State's framework?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Because the Water and Use Development Plan, the, the statewide framework
for updating the Hawaii Water Plan is very explicit and specific in the degree of public
participation and public review that's involved, and it is very also specific about the
process whereby you meet with a group and first you set up your objectives and criteria
by which you'll rank your objectives and then you screen a whole series of scenarios
of... groups of resource options. There's a whole specific process that you go by under
this framework and that's just. .. they're, they're doing the plan. We have a plan, we
have a capital plan and a long-range capital plan, but we don't have an IRP and that's
what we're creating.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How can they do a plan that doesn't follow the
Commission's framework and expect the Commission to expect, to accept it? 'Cause I
also spoke with their planner and he felt that it was within their framework and that it
would be accepted by the Commission on Water Resource Management.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I think it's more comparable to Kauai's 2020 plan which is .. .it's just, it's
not an IRP process. The ... the framework, the Commission may be backing off because
when they had first published the framework nobody was trying to, to follow it. It was
too, people thought it would be too expensive and too difficult. You could contract for a
long-range plan without the full IRP process for less money and have it done real quickly
than a Water Use and Development Plan. That can be done.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm done.
CHAIR KANE: Just to follow up. So are they going to be able to pass it off as a Water Use and
Development Plan?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I, I don't know what their intentions are. My impression when I spoke to
them was that they're doing their long-range plan and... but it wasn't an IRP under the
statewide framework. That's, that's as far as we got really.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in this area, Members, with Ms. Kraftsow? Yes,
Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just to have a verification, is the current. ..Maui's Water Use and
Development Plan still the 1991 draft? So it's-MS. KRAFTSOW: 1992.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --1992 draft?
MS. KRAFTSOW: We ... and it's been with the Commission, it's actually the combination of
the 1992 draft, the 1996 Molokai Water Working Group report and the 1997 Lanai Water
Working Group report.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So the '92 .. .I, Ijust need to make that, that-MS. KRAFTSOW: So for Molokai and Lanai that has been superseded.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But for Maui Island we're still on the '92 draft?
MS. KRAFTSOW: As far as the official Water Use and Development Plan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Okay. Many years have run by, Chairman, and we, and we
are officially in draft mode, never adopted by Council.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in this area? Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I'd just like to follow up on that again. So since
1992 every time there is a allocation of water used, how is that included into the '92
Water Use and Development Plan, specifically?
MS. KRAFTSOW: What we do specifically is we don't ...we don't rewrite the 1992 Plan, we're
working on the update. So what we do is we track for every approval, every
discretionary permit for the community plan, the build out of the community plan, what
that would be like and all the projects that are coming through the Planning Department,
how much water they each represent. We track those by standards in addition to doing
forecasts, both line regression, straight line regression on demand trends as they've been
and as well as ... a forecast that accounts for factors, such as rainfall and economic
factors. Those go into ... we have a draft demand chapter that has already been
distributed for the updated Water Use and Development Plan that's going to be more
fully distributed with the agenda for the next meeting. So those, those plans are
incorporated in that we keep a running tally of how much demand is expected in each
district.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
allocation per district?

So along with the demand you also keep track of the

- 44-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 14, 2005

MS. KRAFTSOW: Do you mean by in terms of how much demand is expected by customer
class or what, what. .. I'm not sure what you mean by allocation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When water is allocated. When water, when someone
comes in for a project and asks for water, you allocate water in, in the form of a meter.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the Water Use and Development Plan is supposed to
keep, it's a budget, it's supposed to keep a running track of how much water is being
expended in each district, what the future needs are ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ...how we're going to go about developing the source for
those needs. So are you keeping track from the baseline of 1992 until today-MS. KRAFTSOW: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --of what those figures are?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Right. There are about five or six different ways that we keep track of that,
yes, but not. .. there probably are eight or ten ways in which we could keep track of that.
So the additional staff will enable us to cover some of the basis that we're not covering
now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Those three figures I just mentioned, are you keeping track
of those right now, are they current? If I asked you what is, what is the total water
allocated in the district, in the Lahaina District, could you give me the, the up-to-date
figure for that?
MS. KRAFTSOW: If you were looking at pending permits, I, I would need, I don't have those
numbers at the top of my head today--my head's not all here today--but about 9 million
gallons I think we have pending based on pending projects. As far as water commitments
that have been issued, it's substantially less. It's actually a couple hundred thousand. I
could give you those numbers--water commission, water commitments issued and
pending projects and build out, I could give you those numbers, and I'm sorry I don't-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For each district?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we request that, Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, so there's two requests. I think: one from Mr. Hokama for the
calendar. .. to provide us, yeah, so we can have a calendar of, of what we can expect with
respects to the development of the Water Use and Development Plan, and then from
Member Anderson, her question of that information. Okay. So we'll get that, Member
Anderson-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank: you.
CHAIR KANE: --and Member Hokama. Members, any further questions in this area? Hearing
none, Ms. Kraftsow, thank: you very much for your presence here this morning. And,
Members, before we move on...to page 3 of 3 in Field Operations, Ms. Morrison, I know
you wanted to provide something for the record regarding the Water Treatment Plant
Program. Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, thank: you, Mr. Chair. I. . .in earlier conversations with Paul Seitz about
the Water Treatment Plant Program and about the Water Purchase Agreement with
C. Brewer/Wailuku Ag, I guess we're talking about, he had indicated not only an increase
in the amount of water, but a very substantial increase in the cost per 1,000 gallons, and I
wanted the Committee to be aware of what that increase is. From 14 cents per 1,000
gallons to .. .in this FY '06 budget, 48 cents per 1,000 gallons for the water from
C. Brewer.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank: you very much.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, one question.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms., Director Morrison, that was a contractual price adjustment or
that was a negotiated price adjustment?
MS. MORRISON: Perhaps Mr. Seitz could answer more, more specifically.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if you would please allow this.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. He's on his way down, Members, without objections. And the Chair will
note ... and will ask for a clarification, the December '04 two-year agreement notated on
that highlighted area on their handout, page 2 of 3 under Water Treatment Plant Program.
Mr. Seitz, thank: you for being here.
MR. SEITZ: Good morning again. To answer Councilman Hokama, that was a negotiated
contract that took effect. .. June 9th , '04.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this ... the notation on the side of the December 2004 to
your agreement is another document that impacts this date?
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MR. SEITZ: No, that's referring to the same contract.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Did something happen as an addendum in, on this, in December,
Mr. Seitz?
MR. SEITZ: Our original Water Purchase Agreement with C. Brewer expired at that time and
then when we reactivated the lao Plant, a new Water Purchase Agreement had to be
negotiated.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. From 14 cents to 48 cents, Mr. Seitz, in pennies maybe to
some it's not a large increase, but, you know, if we're purchasing millions of gallons per
day, it does add up by a thousand gallon ratio. Was this, is this ...reasonable increase for
the County to-MR. SEITZ: Well, let me frame it for you this way. We have several water purchase
agreements. We have a Water Purchase Agreement with Maui Land & Pine on the west
side and we pay 5 cents per 1,000 gallons there. We have a Water Purchase Agreement
with EMI for the up country plants, actually all three of them, and our water purchase
price there is 6 cents per 1,000 gallons. When we originally put the lao Treatment
Facility into operation back in '98, I believe it was, the Water Purchase Agreement at that
time was 14 cents per 1,000 gallons with a base price also. At that time I thought that
was a little excessive. Forty-eight cents per 1,000, my personal opinion is it's off the
chart.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, thank you for being candid. I feel gouged, too.
CHAIR KANE: Violated .... (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean, I mean I'm sure we all can have our, our verbs we could
throw out at and in describing this or, or pronouns. Did anything else besides the water
come ...was there additional easements or amenities that come, comes with us paying
this kind of rate, Mr. Seitz?
MR. SEITZ: The agreement as far as I've read basically only covers the purchase of, of water.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, thank you very much for your .. .information.
Regarding the two-year agreement is, is that the end of the agreement, there's reopeners
in between, or are there agreements in the language of extensions? Can you give us some
indication of how this agreement is structured, please?
MR. SEITZ: Not, not being an attorney, I. . .I can't comment too much on that. I don't see any
clause for extension or... no, I believe it would probably just have to be renegotiated
again at that time. I don't see any extension clauses.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, thank you for your comments, Mr. Seitz. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Seitz, since he's here, regarding the remarks by
our Budget Director on the increase? I guess one from the Chair would be
are ...Mr. Seitz, are you aware of the, the primary driver for the increase on what did
C. Brewer use as their, their justification for this number being in the agreement?
MR. SEITZ: I was not a party to the negotiations, so I really can't, you know, comment on that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does the Director have a comment, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Tengan. You've been pretty quiet. .. .(chuckle) . ..
MR. TENGAN: Purposely.
CHAIR KANE: '" (chuckle). . . You have a comment, Mr. Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. In answer to Mr. Hokama's question, the only driving force to that price
was, as I heard it from, from the Wailuku Ag side, was that that's what the market will
bear and they knew they had their hooks into us because we need a source and so we had
to agree to that amount.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your comments. Okay. Mr. Seitz, thank you very much for your
continued presence this morning.
MR. SEITZ: Oh, okay. Thank you again.
CHAIR KANE: Members, let's move on to the Field Operations Program where we see a spike
overall of a little over $200,000 primary... and, and if you can see, it's listed by order
of. .. the highest to the lowest, the highest one being the road patching material and it
moves down. Any questions in this area? I know we have Mr. Vida here if you have any
specific questions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just, just one. May, maybe the Director can respond on behalf of the
Division. I believe Council made an adjustment on your position count in this Division,
Mr. Director, I guess for the upcountry program. Can you give us a status regarding your
positions are filled, the program is already implemented, whatever is the accurate status,
please?
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MR. TENGAN:
Yes.
These posItions are related to the flushing program.
We
have .. .--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- . .. we're gonna be in the process of transferring the
lab ... , the laborers back ... transferring them into the newly created positions and
reallocate back the positions we had to use to bring onboard the, these people to do our
flushing program. So we're in, we're in the process of filling those positions right now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area? Hearing none, let's move on.
Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Regarding the repair and maintenance others and just below that you got repair and maintenance - work in progress-others, can
you explain both, the difference .. .in the scope of work?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Vida, why don't you come up please, sir. Appreciate your presence this
morning. If you can identify yourself for the record, please and then, Mr. Pontanilla, if
you can restate your question.
MR. VIDA: Good morning. Bobby Vida, Field Operations Chief.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning. Looking at the Details
sheet 18-27, the repair and maintenance - others and repair and maintenance - work in
progress-others, can you tell me the difference between the two?
MR. VIDA: Okay. The one on, the 31,000 would be repairs and maintenance and others, that
would be charged to jobs done on storage tanks and sanitary surveys.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. And the, the other one, work in progress?
MR. VIDA: Work in progress would be in-house programs that we do-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: That you folks do by yourself?
MR. VIDA: --to buy steel and materials.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, just one question for Mr. Vida. Mr. Vida, you know the
increase in cost for the road or, or the increased request for the road patching material, I
notice you folks were doing a lot of work like, for example, in the area I'm from,
Makawao, I see along Olinda Road. Is that due to in part you guys doing more work as
well as the higher cost for the material itself?
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MR. VIDA: Right, and then the price of oil also went up-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. VIDA: --and then on Molokai there is no AC available, so we purchased it on Maui and we
sent it to Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Alright, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions in this area? Hearing none, Mr. Vida, thank you
very much. We appreciate you being here this morning and helping us work through the
operations. Members, let's move on. Plant Operations Program, we have $54,000
increase. It's less than I percent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just one quick question, please. The maintenance
building that we talked about last night, Mr. Director, at Kahului Airport is that for Field
Operations or Plant Operations?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, it houses both the employees from the Field Operations and the
Plant Operations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's your basic collection site before dispersement to their
various work orders?
MR. TENGAN: Right. It's one of the .. .let's see ... one of four buildings we have down, down
at the baseyard.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the ... both programs, Plant Operations and Field Accounts, for
maintenance help maintain that one building? Is that how you folks doing the
bookkeeping?
MR. TENGAN: Well, some of the employees ... no, we don't as far as, you know, recording it
in the, in the books as a fixed asset, it just gets recorded as a building and not necessarily,
you know, let's say half is allocated to Plant Operations and half is allocated to Field
Operations. We don't, I don't believe we charge off any kind of depre ... , depreciation
based on that separation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But maintenance is charged to, to who ... for the, for the facility?
MR. TENGAN: To Field Operations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To Field Operations.
MR. TENGAN: Right.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. How many people, just so I can get one sense of that 3,000
square foot building, that building helps serve? It serves, what, 50 guys, 30 guys?
MR. TENGAN: Well, it serves as the ...the meeting area in the morning when the supervisors
get together with the crews. I guess-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Round numbers, Mr. Director.
MR. TENGAN: Well, we have about, I would guess about 70 employees reporting down to the
Kahului baseyard.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah,7-0?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any questions under Plant Operations, Members? A couple of small
increases in the area of equipment and pumps. Moving on to Department Wide
Expenses, Members. We have a 662,000 overall reflecting under ER, the ERS. That's
the primary number there. Members, we can move on for. .. under the Water Fund for
rates, fees, and assessments. We did have some pretty extensive discussion in
Member Anderson's Water Resources Committee on the ...rates, fees, etcetera, and so
the Chair just wanted to provide another opportunity if there needs to be any clarification
and ultimately this body will make the final determination. Any particular points
Members wants want to bring forward in this area? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. Maybe Staff can take this down since the Budget
Director is excused at this time. My, my concern, Chairman, is okay we are looking at a
water rate increase proposal that the Department has made their presentations as well as
through a stakeholders process. We know in a, in a way it's also going to impact. .. or the
bill that our consumers are going to get is going to be impacted too because Public
Works, Wastewater Division is also proposing increasing their fees which is related to
amount of water usage and, and we're asking to look at the rates for different types of
consumer demand or usage also. Has, has your Department, Mr. Director, talked to
Public Works, Wastewater Division as far as the type of maybe potential total impact the
resident consumer is going to have to deal with in one-year time with this adjustment and
sewers adjustment?
MR. TENGAN: No, we haven't had any con ... , conversations with them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. As far as the stakeholders group that you've worked with and
Ms., I believe, Hajnosz, if that's her, the right way to pronounce her name--
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CHAIR KANE: Hajnosz, I think it's Hajnosz.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Hajnosz, thank you. Any specific concern with the, the rate increase
and any other comments in relation to the sewer that they received, whether from
community groups, seniors, ag users that you can give us comment on this morning,
please?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't recall any conversations or discussions with regard to the
impact on the sewer billings in, in any of the stakeholders committees, committee
meetings. There were, there was much discussion on the impact on the ag customers and,
and the need to provide a lower rate for the agricultural customers.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
please.

Okay.

One, a question on the agricultural side, Mr. Chairman,

CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director, we read that. .. agricultural consumers on page 37 of
the rate proposal to us is going from 76 cents to 80 cents. This is regardless of whether or
not the State's ag land goes in and becomes implemented or, or is there, there's a
potential rate adjustment since it's going to be coming off a dedicated agricultural
irrigation system.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, this amount that's being charged through the schedule here
represents hookups to our system. The, the State would have and established their own
rates for the separate agricultural systems. So it's completely different from the State's
system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is the State going to ask your Department to maintain and
operate their system or is it your understanding that they will maintain and operate their
system?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, several years ago the Board entered into an agreement with the
Department of Agriculture whereby the Department would be operating and maintaining
the system, billing their customers, collecting the ... the ... collecting the billings, and
remitting a net amount to the State after we take out our expenses.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. Okay. And my last one. Let's say I'm a farmer. Do I
have two meters, one for my domestic dwelling and one for my act ... , actual agricultural
use and that the readings of those different meters is then determined which rate I will
pay? I mean let's say, you know ...well, of course, more than likely I don't have sewer if
I was way up Kula doing farming, but I would need two meters, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: No. If you're coming off of our system, you probably would be coming off of
just one meter and it would in my mind off..., you know, bring to you some economic
- 52 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

April 14, 2005

benefits because if you exceed the 25,000 gallons per month and, you know, although
much of that is going to agricultural uses, you may have some household uses that, you
know, whereby if you weren't on the system you would exceed the 25,000 gallons per
month. But rather than paying $2.56,54 cents in excess of the 25,000 gallons, you would
be billed only that 80 cents per 1,000 gallons.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And my last one. If and when the State system gets
implemented and is operational, does that require a separate meter for the farmer or the
agricultural producer?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct because ...the State system
our... from our system. So the meter--

IS

a separate waterline from

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: From the same source, though, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: By source if we go back to the Kahakapao Reservoirs, that's where the water
will be coming from. But rather than going through the treatment plant, the State system
will be bypassing the treatment plant.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right. So they would need to purchase another meter from the
County to hookup to the State system?
MR. TENGAN: They would make their arrangements with the State and not with us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Further questions in this area? Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Perdido, additional
comments?
MS. PERDIDO: Yes, on page--oh, good morning again--page 37 under the size of meter there's
a typo under the 3 inch meter, both for the water service rates and the agricultural
customers. It says it's listed at $70 and it should be at $74 on both of those.
CHAIR KANE: I think there was a correction, Members. All of you have it crossed out and
showing 74? So somebody did make a correction. It looks like your handwriting, too,
Ms. Perdido.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: ... (chuckle). .. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. On page 38, the temporary construction
meters, you're going to increase the cost by $30. On the temporary construction meters I
note that we bill 'em actual cost. Is, is the actual cost would be the installation and the
removal once the, you know, the me ... , temporary meter is no longer required?
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MS. PERDIDO: Members, yes, the temporary construction meters, this is a cost to install,
remove and also we would, do bill, you know, them for the 1 Yz times the regular rates.
Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson, you had a question? Okay. Any further questions
on either of these pages, 37 or 38? Again, we had that pretty extensive discussion there.
I believe there is also a change on page 39 under sewer billing services, Members, and
laboratory charges. Just some notes ... noticing brackets and underscores. Hearing no
further questions or comments, Members, if there are any more, please pose them in
writing and we'll get them to the Department and get 'em hopefully back in a timely
manner so that we can use 'em for our deliberations that are going to start up either
Friday or Saturday into next, the following week.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Chair, Chairman, one quick one for-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Perdido, please. At the back of your... our, our April 14th
handout is your equipment charges effective July 1st, Ms. Perdido, 2005, which lists your
air compressors, your saws, your drilling, your forklifts, your loaders ... your trucks.
Those rates are, are ... you ...how, how you determine that? Is that from the cost, the
purchase cost and then part of your depreciation schedule and then you come up with
your hourly rate? Is that how you approached it?
MS. PERDIDO: Yeah. What they do is they take the, I think it's a depreciation cost and also
overhead cost and maintenance cost and figure out the amounts.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And do you do annual changes or this is pretty, holds pretty
good for maybe like a two-year period?
MS. PERDIDO: We review it annually-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Annually?
MS. PERDIDO: --but we also, we're gonna do a real in-depth study of it this year also, but we
do review it annually.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chainnan, I know that there has been a proposal put
forward to partner with USGS, USGS to gather data necessary for the four streams in
West Maui, this side of the West Maui Mountains in regards to the in-stream flow
petition for those streams.
CHAIR KANE: Three-year study.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Were you going to address that, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: It's not part of the proposal. So, no, it was not going to be brought up at this
portion; however, that I can assure you the Chair intends to have that as part of our
deliberations and the Chair intends to address that in the proposal that's going to be
coming out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we'll have a discussion there because I think that's going to be a
huge benefit for all us, County, everybody. So that'll be a number that we'll all be
looking at, and the Chair is very much aware and have been in contact with the necessary
people to get-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --this infonnation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. Chainnan.

I just wanted to underscore that.

Thank you,

CHAIR KANE: Yes. Thank you very much. Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, one last question and also as a heads up to my colleagues.
I was going to ask the Director, I would like to be able to present to this Committee a
financial request to take care of a conditional zoning which was for the Mane1e Bay
Terraces and the specific condition of zoning, Mr. Director, and thank you for your
assistance, is to make an assessment of the Lanai Water System and whether or not the
County of Maui should consider acquisition and operation of that system on the Island of
Lanai. I know you are working with, with me to come up with a responsible number, but,
you know, what area would I recommend placing that. .. the Office of Director, would it
be part of Field Operations, Planning and Water Resources? Could you give me some,
give us some comment? CIP?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, in response to Mr. Hokama's question, I would feel comfortable if
it's placed with the Administration, Engineering or with Planning. It doesn't really
matter on where it's placed.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your help on that, Mr. Tengan.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, that ends our interaction with the Water Department to this
point. Again any questions, please have 'em forwarded to Staff and we'll get 'em
forwarded to the Department. It's right around 12 o'clock. The Chair is going to recess
until 1:30 p.m. Members, this afternoon we're going to be with first, Police Operations
and second, Public Works and Environmental Management, Wastewater Operations'
rates and fees. The Chair does intend to try and wrap it up a little earlier than our 4:30
schedule, and that intent is to accommodate the evening things that are going to be going
on in this Chamber with respects to the centennial program. So please, again, be mindful
of that. Have a good lunch, Members. Mr. Tengan, thank you for your presence this
morning along with your resources.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We are in recess until 1:30 p.m... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

12:00 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:38 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel) . .. Okay. Let's reconvene, Members. I hope you had a good lunch
break. This afternoon we have with us the Department of Police. Chief Phillips is with
us this afternoon. Good afternoon, Chief.
MR. PHILLIPS: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KANE: Members, this afternoon we've asked the Department to be prepared to respond
to questions with respects to their operations and their IT project. You do have in front of
you an April 14, 2005 memo by Ms. Morrison with, providing us with some background
information that is located on the back. We will start off, Members, on Section 14 of our
Details. We have on 14-5 it starts off with Administration, and at this point, Members,
the Chair will open it up to Chief Phillips and if we have anybody else, Chief, talking, if
we can have them for the first round at least identify themselves for the record. So, I
know you have Captain Hudson and, and so if you can, please. With that, Chief, if you
can begin.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. Good afternoon, Chair and Members. Thank you for the opportunity
again to talk about our budget. Next to me I have, our Business Manager is Greg
Takahashi and next to him is Captain Larry Hudson. He's in charge of our technical
services area which the IT project falls under that. I'll report on, on our operations and
IT project. We, we had hoped to have Mary Wagner who's our IT Project Manager back
by today. A family member had a medical emergency in the mainland and she wasn't
able to get back for today's hearing. I should let you know, though, if you do have
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questions that go beyond what I can tell you or what Larry can tell you, that next week
our consultant is here all week and, and he can either meet or, or respond in writing to
any questions that would be of a technical major, major. . .I mean issue and, and also we
hope to have Mary back next week. We're not sure, though, on that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Chair, excuse me, Chief. So, Members, if there are any
questions that go beyond what can be responded to today, we'll get those in writing and
we'll keep moving right along with our, our agenda for this afternoon. Chief, you want
to start off?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, this is the, for the IT project, this is the fourth year funding ...what we
hope will be a five-year project, and we're actually entering into the phase II of the
project and the money that we requested this year, just in a nutshell, kind of was, was to
begin the ...to develop the infrastructure for the wireless data portion of our IT project.
Now the first phase, of course, was the consultant and vendor selection and then the
installation of our CADs and RMS which is what we're doing currently. Then the next
step, of course, is to develop our, our wireless, wireless data so that we can put computers
in the police cars and transfer data from the cars, and so that's going to require some
fairly extensive infrastructure very similar to what we have with our 800 radio system.
And as a matter of fact, most of the sites may be the same sites, so it will be just
developing those sites, working on agreements again with the landowners and then, of
course, build out whatever we need for that project. Our original request in this area
would've been 4.5 million. Our, our... what we've received this year and what we're
hoping to receive is the 2 million, and we'll combine that with some of the monies from
the Fiscal Year '05 Budget and try and do, I guess, sort of the first phase of phase II,
which was that build out, and then probably in the Fiscal Year '07 we'll be probably
looking for the remaining funding to finish that portion of the project.
CHAIR KANE: Chief, you want to stop there?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. That's ... for that particular item, that's probably where I'll end off.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. The IT project, Members, any questions? And you know
what, let me just get a bearing in our, on our Details.
MR. PHILLIPS: I'm sorry, I should've told you I think the ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 30-44, I believe, Chair, in the-MR. PHILLIPS: ... yeah, 30-44.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the big book.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah, in the Details ... what is it on the Details? Do you know?
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. In your Program, Members. I was looking in Details
at operations and we're going with IT first instead of operations first. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thirty, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Forty-four.
CHAIR KANE: ... 30-44, Members, in your Program. Any questions? We have a $2 million
amount for FY '06 with ... the Chief accompanying that with some background
infonnation in the handout. The floor is open. Member, Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Chief Phillips, thank you for being here. Originally you said
you had planned on having a 4 Yz, was it, million dollar-MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. If, if you remember, we presented a five-year plan sometime ago to the
Council and that .. .it. .. this year would've called for 4 Yz million ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. PHILLIPS: ... for that portion of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now is that because that was, you made the request of
the Administration, then the Administration just made the adjustment? Is that-MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Question, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, my first question to the Chief would be is our Fire
Department and our other public safety program would like such as our ocean safety in
Parks tied into your, your system, Chief, this, this IT system? You know, the Fire runs
their tear and run sheets program?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. They're not. . .I, I think not at this point anyway, that it was never
planned that way, although we have had some discussions about the possibility of. .. of
them on the system to a, to a certain extent. We were going to use some fire, some of the
fire stations for installation of some of the hot spots where before the wireless system is
finished, officers can transmit wireless data and download, I, I guess that would be the
tenn. But at this point they're not, they weren't part of the original plan for this. If, if we
do, it would, it'd probably change the scope of this project and we'd, we'd probably have
to go back and look at changing the contract with the consultant as when, as well as the
vendor for this.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Regarding your upgraded CAD program, your integrated
CAD program, Chief, is this just specific for Police Department's use or do our other
agencies ...work, work with this?
MR. PHILLIPS: Well, the CAD is a, the CAD is a computer aided dispatch-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. PHILLIPS: --so it is, it is upgrading our dispatch center. It's not specifically for other
agencies, but it will affect other agencies that we dispatch for ... Fire-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Fire, right.
MR. PHILLIPS: --the med ... , medical, EMS. So .. .I, I guess in that regard some of the records
that they would need for their calls and stuff could be obtained from our CAD system.
So it would affect them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and I just wanted to be clear, you know, since we're
spending very large sums of money. So, so regardless of who calls 911, your central
dispatch will grab that, that call and then make the decision to send EMS, Fire, Police?
MR. PHILLIPS: That's correct. For Maui and for all of the County, except Molokai, they have
their own 911 dispatchers.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Okay. Now, Chief, we have a $2 million request that's been
submitted to us. What, what would, what was left out from the $4.4 million, the balance
of the $4.4 million? So what would have 2.2, $2.4 million account for?
MR. PHILLIPS: You know if it's, if you're going to ask for specifics, I don't have that yet.
We're, we're going to have to meet with the consultants and develop that plan because
we haven't, we haven't been able to do that yet, but we, we do know it'll probably put us
back a little bit. We, we will still look at. .. the, the next phase we'll still be looking at
the, the infrastructure, trying to build out the actual sites for the wireless data. So it may,
it may put us behind in actually purchasing computers or inst ... , installing computers in
the car.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. PHILLIPS: We might have to wait till another fiscal to do that. It might put us behind
on .. .--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- . . .installation of some of the hot spots, and I won't have
all the details until we're able to, to see exactly how that will affect us and until the
consultant is here next week. He hasn't been here since we, we received the budget on
March 15 th , and that, that's the time that we knew how much we had for this project. So
it, it will affect, I don't think it will. . .I don't think it's going to be a real bad thing,
though. I think we can get by and, and start that build out. It may actually...with what's
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going on with the rebanding issue and stuff, it may actually help us if we need more time
to, to see if the two projects may somehow be able to merge and, and do more for the
radio system. I'm not sure. So we have to look at that with the consultant.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and the reason I asked is that my understanding from
the handout for about 4.4, let's round it off, 4.4 million was the request, 2 million is
presented to us.
MR. PHILLIPS: Db-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Already we know for next year the request anticipation is
$1.4 million. Okay, so that's $1 million still less than this year's total request. I was just
wondering, you know, what is the Department unable to do since now it looks like we
just going to look at a total expenditure of about $11.6 million for your, for your system?
MR. PHILLIPS: Over the five years.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah, or the five phases. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. PHILLIPS: I, I can't tell you exactly what it's going to do yet because we, we, we still have
to sit down and figure all that out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: I, I'm sure next year we'll, we'll have to come in and ask for more than the 1.5,
though, that, that was planned in the, the original request that we presented four years ago
I think, three years ago.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You currently don't have information, Chief, that, you know, when,
when the budget preparers came up with the 2 million, how they arrived at that number
and what was deleted off of your $4.4 million request?
MR. PHILLIPS: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You, you don't have that information?
MR. PHILLIPS: No, I don't. And we never had a chance to meet and discuss that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chief, are you, are you saying that you can live with the
2 million that's in there or is that going to seriously hamper what your, what you can do
at this time and then push it out to the next year?
MR. PHILLIPS: We can, yeah, we can live with it. .. as we always do, we'll live with it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .{chuckle). ..
MR. PHILLIPS: But it, it may, it may slow some of the stuff that we had planned. It'll change
the schedule probably.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. PHILLIPS: We have everything scheduled and we've had things change the schedule
already-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: --so that we're, that we deal with and it's not a matter of funding from you
folks, it's other issues that have caused us to change the schedule. So that's what I'm
talking about when we meet with the consultant is we'll have to go over, look at the
schedule again and kind of re-plan how we're going to do that. So it, it may push the
project out a little bit, exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
MR. PHILLIPS: But I think we can live with that amount.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thanks. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. In, in regards to your completion of this
system, are we looking at completing at the end of Fiscal Year '07 or are we going, going
to go one more year?
MR. PHILLIPS: The actual completion could go longer. And again, again it's this, it's
this ... you know, kind of the same answer. We're going to have to look at that schedule
and find out how this affects it, because, you know, the rebanding issue could affect us,
too. It might make more sense to, to try and look at the two issues. And, and if we were
going to do that anyway, that would, that may push the project out again. But I, I think
the bottom line is we, we have to look at that schedule and see how exactly it's going to
affect us, but I'm sure it will.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Can you explain the rebanding issue?
MR. PHILLIPS: I'm not. .. Should I get into that? It's the radio, it's a radio issue. It's not a
budget issue but-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh.
MR. PHILLIPS: --right now anyway. If you want, I'll be happy to but. ..
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
. . .(chuckle) . ..

No, I, I can ask the Chief some other time .

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Questions? Ms. Tavares, a follow up?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: A follow up. When do you think your ... well, after you
meet with your consultant you'd be able to adjust the schedule? Are they coming like
next week or something?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, he's here all next week and this will .. .I, I think this wasn't one of the
things we had planned on doing, but we, we will .. .it's one of the things we will be
addressing while he's here.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh.
MR. PHILLIPS: And, and I don't know if, if a week is sufficient. Hopefully, we should have
it. . .look at the schedule and be able to adjust how we'll deal with the 2 million rather
than 4.5 by next week with him here, and I know that he'd be happy to answer any of
your questions-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: --of a technical nature while he's here.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 'Cause maybe if we had additional information after he's had
a or whoever has had a chance to look at it, you can forward that information to the
Chair-MR. PHILLIPS: Oh, absolutely, we'll be happy to do that.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --'cause we're still in deliberation.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes. We'll, we'll get that as soon as it's ready.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And, Chief, if you can get that to our Staff, we'll make sure that it gets
distributed so when we have deliberations we have updated infonnation on the IT system.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay, I'd be happy to do that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Chief on IT? Hearing none, Members,
let's go ahead and start off. There's an additional handout that was given to you that
looks like this, and that starts where I thought we were going to start on 14-5.
MR. PHILLIPS: Oh, I'm sorry. I couid've started there.
CHAIR KANE: No, no that's okay. We're, we're moving.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: No problem.
MR. PHILLIPS: These are the increases to our operational budget that we're requesting, and I
think one of the things to remember is some of these things we have asked for. It looks,
some of 'em look like a lot for one year, but some of 'em we've been asking for a long
time and this is the first time it actually hit the budget. So the, the first one which would
be on.. .I, I would assume we're going to use the Details.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, sir.
MR. PHILLIPS: So 14-5-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. PHILLIPS: --page 14-5, and this is for electricity--main station, yeah?--at the Wailuku
Station we're asking for an increase of 50,000 to the budget there and it's basically just
due to the increase in cost. I guess because of the increase in fuel the increase of the gas,
I mean the electricity has gone up as well. So .. .if you look at what we've ... spent to
date-CHAIR KANE: Chief, you know what we'll do. Why don't I do this. We'll go by program. So
in this case with this page and this infonnation and if there's any questions-MR. PHILLIPS: Okay.
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CHAIR KANE: --and because you ... and thank you, you've provided us with the highlighted
areas of the increase.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So we'll see if the Members have questions and if they need additional
comment from you, then we'll, we'll do it that way and that way it makes it, you know,
easier and we can move along.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. Very good. Under, under the Uniformed-- You want me to do the
whole Administration first?
CHAIR KANE: No. So-MR. PHILLIPS: One at a time?
CHAIR KANE: --Members, under Administration are there any questions in, in this area that
you need clarification on? Member Anderson followed by Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me. Thank you. Can you explain to me why in
'04 the electricity was $100,000 more than '05?
MR. PHILLIPS: In '04? That was the year that we did a, a...we changed all the lights in the
station to energy saving and so it came out of our electricity budget. That was $60,000 to
retrofit our station with energy saving lights, and so that added to that '04 budget. So we,
it, it came out of our electricity budget anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you, has it saved any energy?
MR. PHILLIPS: We believe it saved energy. The problem is the, of course, the cost has gone
up as well so ...but we, we do think that it's, it is saving energy.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: If the change wasn't made, it would've evened that much more now .
. . . (chuckle). ..
MR. PHILLIPS: Exactly.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I appreciate the Department taking that, those type of proactive
initiatives on their own. Chief, under the grant match area, I notice you're asking for

- 64-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

April 14, 2005

$37,000 more. So our assumption would be then you're getting a lot more grant revenue.
Is that a good assumption?
MR. PHILLIPS: We actually never had before. So this was, this is kind of matching what
grants that we have now that we're assuming or we're hoping that we'll be able to get
this year similar. So we were underfunded for the match before.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, that, that's a good comment for us to be aware of.
Finally, Chief, I, I'm sure maybe I asked you this before, but I just was wondering.
Forfeiture funds cannot be used to do grant matching-MR. PHILLIPS: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --well, for Federal programs? Let's say, you know, it's another
Federal grant-MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. In some cases, yes, I'm sorry, it could, probably could. We have to be
careful on the forfeiture funds-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. PHILLIPS: --yeah, but in some cases probably.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Probably-MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --might be able to, yeah. Okay. Yeah. I would just ask that you
would consider using some of your forfeiture funds to go and secure and, and use it as a,
your leverage to assist you whether before Homeland Defense funds, further Homeland
Defense funds or other things that can support your Department's requirements.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. Homeland Defense, there's no match typically. These are, these are
more the Byrne grant and some of the COPS grants that has matching, but Homeland
Security there's no match. LLEBG there wasn't a match before, although we, we haven't
received that this year so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. No, I've just been made aware during our, with our
participation in our national organization that Congress was considering ... 'cause it's
getting very competitive for the Homeland funds, that they might consider asking for
some local match, 5 percent level, maybe 10 percent, and that's why I had asked about
your forfeiture funds.
MR. PHILLIPS: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So I just wanted to, to share that with the Department also,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In regards to gasoline, diesel, oil and
so forth, you know, most departments come, come to us with a kind of large increase,
especially Public Works. The number of vehicles that you have running 2417, is that
sufficient?
MR. PHILLIPS: Well, we, we are asking for increases, but it's kind of broken down in the
different districts.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: So we, we didn't put it under Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: It's under each separate district-COUNCILMEMBER PONTAl'J"ILLA: Okay, good.
MR. PHILLIPS: --and we think we're sufficient.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: It is?
MR. PHILLIPS: We believe it's enough.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And that was more of a general question, yeah, Members, for the all, for
all the items. Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, moving on, under Uniformed
Services we have some listings, Hana, Molokai. Hana, 2,000 increase, I think it's been
explained. On 14-33 of your Details, the Molokai housing request, it's a 20,000 increase.
Any questions in this area? Okay, let's move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we have the Chief explain that to me, please?
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CHAIR KANE: Sure, on page 14-33.
MR. PHILLIPS: Which one is this? I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: SHOPO housing.
MR. PHILLIPS: Oh, okay. It's just collective bargaining. It, it. .. what we pay for the housing
allowance went up. We used to pay.. .450 to 750 and now we're paying... 950 and up.
So that, that's just a collective bargaining increase for housing allowance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry, Chief, I'm not familiar with this at all. So if you
could just give me-MR. PHILLIPS: Our officers that are assigned from Wailuku to outer districts of Molokai,
Lanai, or Hana, if we can't provide housing in one of the cottages for them, we, we will
pay a monthly allowance for housing, and the amount that we used to pay them went up.
It was negotiated with the union .. .just based on we hadn't raised it in a lot of years and
rents were going up in the different areas and our officers couldn't find places at what we
were giving them. So we, we increased it--was it last year or the year before?--2003 we
actually increased it, the Fiscal Year of 2003. So again this is probably not a new
request, but it is costing us more to house the officers on the outer islands.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the Department provides cottages in these areas for the
officers and then if-MR. PHILLIPS: We have some cottages, but we don't have enough for all the officers that are
assigned there. So like in Hana we have enough for three of the officers that are assigned
there. The other officers will, will rent. .. rent housing. On Molokai we have some
officers that are renting and then in Lanai as well. So that, what we pay them just went
up. We used to pay them ... yeah, 550 to 750 depending on, on what they could find and,
and what the union brought to us was a study that said they can't find housing at, in
those, at those rates two years ago. So we did raise it up to 950. So the cost just went up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sure it did. I'm, I'm curious because this might be
something we could use to extend to all the officers in some way and-MR. PHILLIPS: Oh, I, I'm for that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (chuckle) . .. Yeah. Maybe not through this particular
program, but it shows that, you know, this is already being done.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. It would, it would be a huge recruitment if we had some kind of cost of
living here for our officers. I'm sure it would not only help recruiting but help retention
as well.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. PHILLIPS: So if there's anything you can do to help us in that area, we'd appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? And that starts on 14-34, Members, for ...moving on
to the Lanai District. There's a couple of increases: grounds maintenance - 6,000, as
well as the gas that Mr. Pontanilla brought up. Any questions here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one, Chairman, please.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm happy to support the Department's need for the maintenance.
Obviously we are all aware of our...well, for now it's the flagship station being brand
new. So I would agree with the Chief and the Department that we need to maintain it in
the best possible condition. Regarding the gasoline, the Chief is well aware as I that on
Lanai we've been pay over $3 for a long time, and so this $1,000, Chief, I'm not sure if
that's sufficient because your, your men needs to respond both on-road and off-road
requirements. But my comment, my question is have you been able to utilize the Public
Works fuel program? 'Cause I've asked Fire to participate, Parks to participate 'cause
we're able to do the bulk purchasing and we do have fuel storage capability for both
unleaded and diesel requirements, and that might be able to save you some, some of your
expenses in the fuel.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. We have not yet and it probably, obviously would save us if we could.
. . .I think the issue so far in our discussions about that is just having, we need 24-hour
accessibility to the facility to be able to use it. So far we haven't had that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If you're using Lanai City Service, you don't have 24 hours access,
right?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. That's true, too. So we haven't, but we haven't been able to do that yet.
That's something we'll continue to look into, though.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I'm happy to support the Department's efforts to get that
squared away because, one, it helps us in our bulk purchasing whereby, of course, yeah,
we all know the breaks by quantity purchase. But secondly, I think where it's easier for
our Public Works Department on Lanai to help provide you with 24-hour access you, you
obviously need.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, I agree.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, I will do my part to support you, Chief.
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MR. PHILLIPS: Okay, thanks. We can work that out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before we go further, Members, just so you're aware, on this
handout behind there's another couple of pages that gives you additional summary on the
items if it helps as far as answering your questions that you may have. Moving on,
Members-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Looking at your chart over here, I, I see all kind
numbers. You know, let's, let's take the, the first increase like $50,000 and then you go
right across it says request is 381. The Fiscal Year '05 is 331. Now on the bottom you
get 411,864 and then 83 percent. What does that represent?
MR. PHILLIPS: That's based on what we've spent so far this year, that's what we think our
projected spending would be in that area.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In that?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we're moving out of Lanai and into the Lahaina District for the gas
increase, so it's $16,000. Any questions in this area? Okay, let's move on, Members.
Professional services under traffic, the $18,000 increase on 14-34, professional services
and I think that's listed under traffic on your page 1 of 2 on the first or the rear
attachment, DUI blood extraction services. Any questions in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One, one question.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
personnel?

Who does the actual extraction, Chief? Do you have an EMS

MR. PHILLIPS: It's a nurse and ...Rosemarie Caires.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
everyday--

Okay.

And then obviously I guess they're, they're on-call

MR. PHILLIPS: Twenty-four hours a day.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --year round? Okay. Thank you, Chief.
MR. PHILLIPS: Standby, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Moving on, Members, the Kihei or South Maui District, the
gasoline, 20,000 increase, there's some janitorial increase, and the lease rent. .. district.
And this is for the substation, Chief?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, the station that we're in right now, currently.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, and that information is located on the very back, the
breakdown, square footage, and current information.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chief, this, this amount for the janitorial, this
the ... only for the Kihei Town Center Substation?

IS

for

MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and why has it increased?
MR. PHILLIPS: It, it's actually increased before, but we've just, we haven't had the funding to
increase it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's the same service, but it's-MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --increased by $9,000?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. We just actually never had enough funding for. .. to begin with.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Does Ka Lima do that?
MR. PHILLIPS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Then the lease rent-- 70 -
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MR. PHILLIPS: The Kihei, the Kihei .. .it's, it's usually by bid that we put out and they bid on
it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the lease rent has also increased?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, and ... our lease is up till when? Our lease will expire again in July of
2006, so we could be looking at another increase after that 'cause I... we won't have the
new station by then. So ... but it, it did increase and we just haven't increased our budget
to cover that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So none of these funds go towards use of the building at
Kamaole Point?
MR. PHILLIPS: No, we ... again that, that is a Parks building. We're, we're a guest there. We
don't pay rent or anything there for that facility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know when we toured there, the officers were
spending some of their own money. I, I know you're a guest, you don't pay rent, but
isn't there a need to put something in the budget for the officers that use that substation?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. I know, I'm not aware of any .. .if, if they're needing equipment and
things there that, you know, we can find that in the budget. I'm not sure what they're
spending their own money on. If it's .. .I don't know what they're, I haven't had any
complaints that they're spending their own money there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: It's something we can look into.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. PHILLIPS: It's not a facility that would require an awful lot from us if...the stuff they
need there. We have put equipment and stuff down there, but we've never really
budgeted. We've just taken it either from somewhere else or, or purchased to outfit that
building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, since we're on the subject, I'm a little
concerned about employees using that building because we were told that when we had a
meeting down there that the building wasn't really in safe condition to allow the public to
use it, yet we have Police, we have our Prosecutor, and we have our lifeguards using that
building.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. We have some office space there that we use for our, our visitor
oriented policing, our community police officer, and right now the, the Deputy
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Prosecutor, Community Prosecutor is using an office space there which it's sufficient for.
I, I don't think it would be a place to hold a community meeting, though. There's really
no facility for that there. The bathrooms don't meet. .. any ADA standards and things
like that that you would have to have if you were going to make that a community center.
If we're going to do that, then it would need a major renovation or, or rebuild-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I realize that. I'm just concerned that it may not be safe
for our employees ifit's not safe for the public-MR. PHILLIPS: I think it's safe for what we're doing there .. .I... to have an office there. I
don't think we have any issues-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
MR. PHILLIPS: --other than the occasional centipede or something like that.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckle) . ..
MR. PHILLIPS: We have that in a lot of places.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Or termites... (chuckle) . .. yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, moving on, Members, out of the Kihei District. We're going to be
moving up to Support Services. The Department has provided us on the first handout a
breakdown, and just to get clarity I know there's ...there's a breakdown, a total of 180,
but the addition...the two numbers that are given, Tasers and supplies, comes out to 190.
And because you folks are showing that on page 14-45 under 910166, materials and
supplies, miscellaneous supplies, so the total is an increase of 180,000. Just to get clarity
on the first handout where it says costs, the two numbers add up to 190 and you folks
have--so the supplies is, what, 15,000 or the Tasers is less, Chief?
MR. PHILLIPS: No, the .. .I believe it would be the supplies that would be less.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so 15,000?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Members, on this subject matter the Chair will be cautious
and/or will be monitoring the level of detail we get into regarding Tasers because we do
have some, some legal issues that are going on right now, and so we are prepared, if
necessary, to go into executive session if there, if the, if the line of questioning gets to a
point where it would compromise any legal issues. So I just want to put that on the table
first, and I'm, I'm recognizing Mr. Molina before I recognize Ms. Anderson.
Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon, Chief. The
Tasers that the Department is considering purchasing, are these an, an upgrade or a
modification of the Tasers that are currently in stock?
MR. PHILLIPS: No, it would be the same-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Same?
MR. PHILLIPS: --as we're purchasing-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: --right now, the same thing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And-MR. PHILLIPS: We're purchasing the smaller one.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. And I saw that, you know, the, the beat officers they
carry roughly over ten pounds of equipment, so I was just curious if these-MR. PHILLIPS: It's actually, yeah, it's actually pretty light and that's why for, that's why I kind
of held off on ... the original Tasers to me were too big for what we have to carry, but
when they came out with the smaller one, then it made a little more sense for us.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And in general the Tasers are warrantied for how long
and what, what's the, I guess, the Department's plan as to how, how they're serviced,
how often are they serviced?
MR. PHILLIPS: The actual warranties is a one-year warranty.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: One-year warranty.
MR. PHILLIPS: And how often they're serviced .. .I, I guess that, you know, as the officers
train, they're trained how to maintain it daily and if, if there is something that is
malfunctioning or a problem with it, then it's brought to our Plans and Training where we
have an officer that's a master trainer and can kind of take care of that issue. I don't
know that we've had any warranty issues yet. Have we? Not so far.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you-MR. PHILLIPS: We, we've currently purchased, I believe, 59 using some of our savings last
year in forfeiture money that we have outfitted, and that, and that was for our pilot
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projects. Now we're, we want to expand it to all of the uniform area and that's what this
is for.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Can you give us a general idea of what the
legal issue, issues are so that we can avoid those kind of questions?
CHAIR KANE: Why don't you just go ahead and then, and if we start getting into it. . .into ...
Go ahead, Ms. Anderson, I'mjust-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That was my question.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Instead of getting into the details of the, of the current case, I'd prefer
that we'd provide the opportunity to ask the question and if it gets ... 1'11 get guidance
from Corporation Counsel, Member Anderson. I've been advised to be cautious of the
line of questioning-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --and it's to protect the County.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So we have 59 Tasers currently in the Department?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so we're going to like triple the amount so that-MR. PHILLIPS: Well, right now what we're doing is we, we purchased enough to do a pilot
project in the Wailuku District. That's not enough to outfit every officer, though. It's
like when we .. .it's, it's like if we issued them a gun and I only had enough to cover the
beats, and so as they come in from the road they exchange it with the guy coming in, and
that's what they're doing right now with the Tasers. Our, our plan all along, if, if the
pilot project was successful and if this was an equipment that we felt that would, would
benefit the County, was to purchase a Taser for every officer, just like guns, just like the
flashlights, so they don't have to change out. But that didn't make sense to request all of
that up front and buy 300 Tasers and then maybe we didn't want it, you know. So we
wanted to make sure that it was something that would benefit our officers and benefit the
community, and we believe that it is. We believe that it will reduce injury to our officers
and to the defendants that we arrest out there. We've already seen that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so are these Tasers different from the 59 you already
have?
MR. PHILLIPS: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They're the same, huh?
MR. PHILLIPS: They're exactly the same.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I know you have special training for the use of these
Tasers. That's correct?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do you have any kind of special training and dealing
with mentally ill people?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All officers have that training?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, my question would be for the Chief regarding the Tasers.
Is there specific protocol on, on the use and ... and if you do have one, is there that very
clear line when the officer goes between Taser and actual firearm?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, we have a...we, we do have a use of force continuum and, and it falls in
there. It's not at the level oflethal force, the Taser, and so yes they are trained when it is
appropriate to use it and how to use it. In our train, our training goes beyond what is the
recommended training, minimum training. We, we go beyond that and, and do more.
We train them how to use it, how the thing functions, and then we do some training on
situational and, and when is appropriate to use it as well, and then we also
review .. .--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- . .. Taser.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there a data sheet that is made available to, to us so we can
understand the dynamics of the Taser? It shoots a electrical charge equivalent to "x"
amount of volts which would be something like a 110 outlet shock in case you're stuck,
youknow-MR. PHILLIPS: I, I have the expert right here if you want to ask him any questions about the
use or, or all of that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if you wouldn't mind if the Chief can bring his expert
personnel.
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CHAIR KANE: Sure, without objections, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: And, Chief, if you can introduce the sergeant for us when he comes down.
MR. PHILLIPS: This is Sergeant Mark Joaquin from our Plans and Training, and he is actually
our Use of Force Manager for the Department, coordinates all of our use of force
training, including the Tasers, and he is ... are, are trained, a master trainer in the Taser
and I'm sure can answer any questions that you have.
CHAIR KANE: Sergeant, if you can, please identify yourself for the record.
MR. JOAQUIN: Thank you. My name is Mark Joaquin, I'm a Sergeant with the Police
Department, Use of Force Trainer.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, thank you, Chairman. Thank you very much, Sergeant.
Maybe, first, if you could just show us the actual Taser gun, you know, keep it in your
hand, but we, we'd just like to see ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckle) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean maybe the Chairman might think this is a good time to zap
the Members. . .. (chuckle) . ..
MR. JOAQUIN: I've rendered it completely safe by removing what would be the battery from
it. So it's unable to function at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And for this to work you would fire a.. .like an electrode at,
at the ... person that you need to calm down or apprehend?
MR. JOAQUIN: It functions two different ways. It has two different methods of use.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. JOAQUIN: One is to put a cartridge onto the end ofit-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. JOAQUIN: --when the trigger is pulled, the electricity sends two probes, they're small
metallic probes, stainless steel--
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. JOAQUIN: --which affix themselves to the person. Those probes are connected by a very
thin metal wire, the electricity is conducted down the wires into the probes and into the
person rendering them immobile, like tetany, or the muscles locking up.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which is a temporary condition ofthe-MR. JOAQUIN: It's a temporary thing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --on the person?
MR. JOAQUIN: Absolutely, and controllable by the officer by turning it off. He can tum it off
at any time that he wants to. So the amount of time can be determined by-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So once the charge stops, the muscles then relax and go back to it's
so-called normal state?
MR. JOAQUIN: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. JOAQUIN: The probes can ex ... , extend out to 21 feet. So the effective range of it is
21 feet away from a person without the cartridge on the end. If this portion of the Taser
is touched to them, it becomes a pain compliance. The electricity flowing into the body
emits a, a degree of pain to the person. So it can be used in that capacity. It's less
effective. We train it as a backup should it fail to ...both of the probes fail to touch a
person or one of the wires break. We use it as a backup. It's not our first choice.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: When you, when you mentioned with the actual physical contact that
it is less ... What was your description, Sergeant, please? I, I forgot. It's less-MR. JOAQUIN: If these contacts touch them?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. JOAQUIN: It's a secondary. The terminology for it is a drive stun. It doesn't have the
muscle tetany or the lockup, but it's pain compliance. The electricity flowing through the
body produces a degree of pain to that person, a very low level of pain. The reason that
we use it for a backup is because pain compliance doesn't work on combative focused
individuals or individuals that are on certain types of drugs. So it can be used in that
manner, but we train to use it only if this doesn't work as our first choice.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and those wires connected to your probes, of course,
have enough strength that would take some effort to break that wire, right--77-
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MR. JOAQUIN: It does.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --to disconnect the charge?
MR. JOAQUIN: It does.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How many firings can one cartridge handle?
MR. JOAQUIN: The cartridge is ... one-time use only. You need to discard it once it's been
used.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So if you miss by chance, Sergeant, you gotta reload the, the gun?
MR. JOAQUIN: Yes, sir, and we carry extra cartridges and we train for proficiency to be able to
change the cartridge in a minimal amount of time to be able to utilize it. Each officer
carries three cartridges with them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Have, is there any medical concerns that we need to be aware
of in, in regards to having our support for this large purchase-MR. JOAQUIN: Yes-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --whether it be for the user or for the person trying to be
apprehended or controlled?
MR. JOAQUIN: The manufacturer and several independent agencies have done extensive
studies on it to, to see the effect that it mayor may not have, and overwhelmingly they
have come up with the conclusion that it's, it's non .. .it's a temporary-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's non-lethal?
MR. JOAQUIN: --incapacitation. Yeah, there's no long-term effects from the Taser energy
going into a person.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that, that is documented and will be able to be verified
should we need to-MR. JOAQUIN: Absolutely.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --have that documentation?
MR. JOAQUIN: Absolutely. I do have documentation available that I can make available to
anybody with regard to--
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Has your, your 59 officers in use or, or with the capacity of
use. .. Well, maybe I shouldn't talk that up since you mentioned a legality, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Well, proceed with the question and then I have, I have-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Have, have-CHAIR KANE: --eye contact with the-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --what kind of response has your officers been able to give you
regarding effectiveness in actual application of the use of a Taser gun?
MR. JOAQUIN: Overwhelming support from our officers, overwhelming. They have-CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Sergeant. If you can grab your microphone, you're drifting away,
and just pull it down, you can pull it down. There you go.
MR. JOAQUIN: I'm sorry. Overwhelming support from our officers. They have both
personally and professional spoken to me and say that they have been in instances that if
they did not have the Taser available, other force options would not have been effective
and they would have had to raise their force levels which would've either resulted in
increased injuries to the suspects or increased injuries to our officers. So we have
overwhelming support from the, the people who are using it on the road.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh, uh-huh. Thank you, Chairman. I'm happy to let the other
Members have their opportunity.
CHAIR KANE: And the Chair can... the Chair had an opportunity to go to the Police
Department and see a very in-depth demonstration and a lot of information, and I believe
that Member Molina has also gone through that and as the Com ... , Chairman of the
Committee of the Whole, and I believe that the Department has made the offer to have
anybody to go see a full-blown demonstration on how it works and ... very interesting.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does your-- Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: No, no. Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does your officers go, get tasered to know exactly what the suspect
goes through?
MR. JOAQUIN: We don't make it a mandatory requirement-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand.... (chuckle) . ..
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MR. JOAQUIN: No, but 100 percent of the officers that went through elected to feel the effects
of it, and 100 percent of them has said that everybody should go through it to know how
effective it is and that it's, it's very effective when used properly.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn't our understanding correct that stun guns or, or Tasers is an
illegal. . .I guess weapon, it's a weapon, type of weapon for a, for anyone to have? Is that
a good understanding on our part regarding State laws or other applicable rules?
MR. JOAQUIN: State, the State of Hawaii law forbids anyone other than a police agency to
own or, or operate a Taser, and it also has the requirement of when a police department
does own it that they keep good records, which we comply with.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Does that, does this Taser
also work on animals, like Rottweilers and, you know, new types of things that are now
kind of violent?
MR. JOAQUIN: Yes, sir, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It does? And what is the stun time?
MR. JOAQUIN: Excuse me?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Like once, once that cartridge hits the individual, what is the
downtime for that individual?
MR. JOAQUIN: The, the computer in here regulates it. Once you fire it out, it will
automatically go for five seconds regardless of what you do. But there's some things that
we can do. We can either make it go longer than five seconds, if necessary, or we can
tum it off and make it go less than. It's automatically timed to go to five seconds.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. JOAQUIN: SO that, for that five seconds as an officer and a dynamic situation, we don't
have to worry about something. We have five seconds that we can go do something
while this takes care of that timing for us. But if in that five seconds we say we don't
need to go five seconds, we can tum it off. If in that five seconds we determine we need
to go longer, we can make it go longer if need be-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.

- 80-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 14, 2005

MR. JOAQUIN: --and we have had. Also, within here is .. .in that computer that regulates it,
every firing of this weapon is recorded, the date, the time and the temperature, when it
was fired, for how long, the duration. So if an officer fires the weapon, pulls the trigger
and it goes less than five seconds, it'll be recorded as less than. If it goes for longer than
five seconds, it'll be recorded. So it's very accountable. We can download the
information onto a computer, and every single time that this trigger is pulled we know
when and for how long.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and to charge the instrument is that like only cartridge or
it's like a plug into the wall or I mean how do you ... you know, is it just by the battery
pack?
MR. JOAQUIN: There's a proprietary battery from the manufacturer that is an expendable item.
It lasts for up to 300 firings or lO-year shelf1ife-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh.
MR. JOAQUIN: --on expense. That once this is depleted, it's replaced again with another
proprietary battery that we need to get from the manufacturer.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Do the cartridges, can they be reloaded or do
they have to be replaced every time you use one?
MR. JOAQUIN: They're an expendable. Once they're used, they, they can no longer be used.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how much does it cost for a cartridge?
MR. JOAQUIN: The cartridges that we issue to the officers on the field are about $20 a piece.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you said a person needs to be .. .I mean they, they, the
probes extend 22 feet?
MR. JOAQUIN: Twenty-one feet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Twenty-one feet. So if an officer was in a situation where
someone's further than that away depending...well, they wouldn't use it if they were
that, that far away?
MR. JOAQUIN: It would, the situation itself would determine whether or not we could use it.
We, we need to be within that 21-foot range.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. And does the, the length of time that. .. you know,
you were saying five seconds or it could be programmed for more, does the power of the
stun have anything to do with the weight of the person? Do you have to adjust according
to ... ? I mean it seems it would be less effective on a, on someone who weighs more
than somebody that's small.
MR. JOAQUIN: I understand the question. It's effective regardless of, of size for the person.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Hi, Mark. You, you said that the Taser
guns can only be handled by law enforcement officers. Animal control officers... could
they handle this Taser gun also?
MR. JOAQUIN: I apologize, I don't know the answer to that question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: We'd probably have to check with Corporation Counsel on that. I don't know
either.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions for the Sergeant specific to the
equipment? Any further questions regarding the request of 180,000 in this area?
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just quickly. Chief, you're asking for 165 and yet, and we are aware
that you plan, would plan to ask for another 75 next budget cycle?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We just, we just-MR. PHILLIPS: We're, we'll eventually, we'll eventually be seeking funding to outfit every
officer. We have 350 plus officers. So this initial. .. from what we purchased this year
and last year and then what we hope to get in this '06 budget would pretty much outfit all
of our uniformed services people, traffic and all the uniformed people, and after that we
will be looking to outfit our vice division, juvenile... SRT officers-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
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MR. PHILLIPS: --along that lines. I should mention also that we, we .. .it was very effective on
a large Pit Bull that bit one of our officers earlier.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That's good to know. Sergeant Joaquin, one last one, please.
Does the probes need to touch the body itself or just the clothing is sufficient for the
charge to, to be effective?
MR. JOAQUIN: The-CHAIR KANE: Sergeant, excuse me, adjust your microphone, please. Thank you.
MR. JOAQUIN: Sorry. It doesn't. It has to be within 2, 2 inches. So it can... cumulative
inches, the probes can contact into clothing and the electricity can arc through air up to a
cumulative 2 inches, like a static electricity jump from when you go to a place that does
that. Like Vegas, for instance, you get a lot of static electricity there. It can jump
through the air up to 2 inches. So it's designed to work whether or not it contacts actual-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The actual-MR. JOAQUIN: --actual skin, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --skin itself.
MR. JOAQUIN: SO it's effective through clothing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Some guys, you know, how they
wear those thick jackets, yeah, Sergeant. That could potentially minimize the, the
electrical effect on the suspect?
MR. JOAQUIN: That is true. If it's not within the 2 inches, it would be ineffective. We
addressed that in training in choosing the location that we shoot people. But it's effective
throughout the entire body if you will. So if they're wearing clothing in one particular
portion of the body-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Or in the legs or something?
MR. PHILLIPS: --we would, we would try to deploy it to a different portion of the body, and we
addressed that in training.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Sergeant.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area? Hearing none, Sergeant, thank
you very much for your, your time this afternoon.
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MR. PHILLIPS: I'll apologize to Moana. When I said we have an expert, she thought I was
calling her down.
ALL: .. .(chuckle) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Ramaya did get tested on by the way, Members.
ALL: ... (chuckle) . ..
MS. RAMAYA (from the audience): And I. . .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: And she, she's-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And she has a heart condition.
CHAIR KANE: --and she has a heart condition, too.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: She's still with us .... (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, we're going to proceed forward. We have
2,500 increase under cell phone - community relations on page 14-46. Any questions
there, Members? You need clarification on the request? We're moving on to the services
information tech or IT for operations. Members, there's a total of 254,000 plus another
100,000, for a total of 354. Chief, why don't you go ahead and give us some, some
highlight in this area, please?
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. The, the 254 is ... for hardware and software maintenance costs for, for
the project that's not covered in the funding that we're seeking to put in the, the computer
system, and the 100,000 is for Tl lines that will allow us connectability to our outside
island and district stations.
CHAIR KANE: Questions, Members, in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Chief, after this system is all installed and whatever,
do you, what do you expect or do you know the annual operations cost for the system?
MR. PHILLIPS: It would probably be something similar to this right here, this 350,000, not
including the, the money for positions. But the operational cost would .. .I, I would
assume would be somewhere close to this, and it's probably going to be subject to I
would think negotiation or, or, you know, occasionally maintenance goes up, but it would
be somewhere in this ballpark.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just basically the, the maintenance of the system would be
about this much?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That doesn't, does that include software upgrades as, as we
go on in years?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. Maybe I can .. .I don't want to say for sure. I think it would be, but
maybe we should wait and, and talk with Mary-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: --and, and the consultant when they're here and get that information to you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area, Members? If not, the final area, Members, is on
14-47 at the bottom, almost at the bottom of the page, janitorial services under utility, and
that's for increased cost, Ka Lima 0 Maui contract proposal, an additional $40,000 for
the police station, the central police station facility. Any questions in this area?
MR. PHILLIPS: Could I add a little to that?
CHAIR KANE: Please do.
MR. PHILLIPS: Just I, I know that last year they had asked us or informed us that they were
going to increase last year, this current budget, and we hadn't budgeted for it. It was after
we went through budget deliberations. So we, we had asked them to hold off a year and
they agreed. So this is the increase that has actually been pending for a while.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Could I ask is the, does this include an increase in
services for the station?
MR. PHILLIPS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And how many people service the station?
MR. PHILLIPS: It's about seven with the supervisor, I think, somewhere in there. I could get
the exact if you need that. I, I'm thinking six to seven and a supervisor.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Did they give you a breakdown of what that 40,000 increase
would be used for?
MR. PHILLIPS: Not so far. I think it's ... they, they're ...they haven't had an increase since
1996 is the last time. So I know we, we've talked to 'em before about it and just kind of
said, you know, it's not budgeted, don't ask us. So last year our agreement was that we
would come and ask this year for an increase.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So they're, they've been paid ... annually 105,661? Would
that be accurate?
MR. PHILLIPS: Eight-three thousand two hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And it's been the same for-MR. PHILLIPS: Since 1996.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --since, since 1996? I only ask that because they also
requested from the Parks Department a huge increase. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, if you'd like, the Committee can send that question out to Ka
Lima 0 Maui to give us a response regarding their overall request for increases in their
contracts.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'll, I'll send the question in. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, great. Thank you. Any further questions on any portion of the
operations? Members, please if you can-- Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just wondering if the contract, you have a contract
with Ka Lima?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is it an annual contract?
MR. PHILLIPS: Annual contract.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you don't go out to bid, you just. .. renew it every
year?
MR. PHILLIPS: No, we don't. They're exempt from the bid, Ka Lima.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any further questions, please pose them in writing.
We'll get 'em off to the Department and have them provide us a timely response. Chief,
thank you very much-MR. PHILLIPS: Thank you all.
CHAIR KANE: --for you and your personnel providing us with the information that's needed.
Members, 2:40 p.m. We're going to take a recess and we will reconvene at 2:55 p.m. and
we will be meeting with the Public Works and Environmental Management for
Wastewater Operations' rates and fees. This Committees stands in recess ... .(gavel) . ..

RECESS:

2:42 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:03 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel). .. Okay, Members, here we go. Thank you for that break. This
afternoon we have our Deputy from Public Works and Environmental Management,
Mr. Mike Miyamoto, good afternoon, as well as--who is this?-MR. MIYAMOTO: Tracy Takamine.
CHAIR KANE: --oh, oh, sorry--Mr. Tracy Takamine with us and they are going to be our
people working with us on the proposed sewer user, recycle water fees, Wastewater
Reclamation Division, and also Wastewater Operations, Members. Any questions as far
as how we proceed? The Chair is going to open it up to Mr. Miyamoto. Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ifwe can just follow what's the, the sequence of the
programs as shown in the Program book, the proposed budget. The first item being on
page 18-55 for the Wastewater Fund for the Administration, the operations shows an
increase of $36,500 for the request of FY '06. The operations special cost is just a
mathematical computation that's based upon salaries, and the equipment request for FY
'06 is 28,000.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, what page is that on?
CHAIR KANE: On your Program we're on 18-55. Mr. Miyamoto, is that correct?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: And in your Details you're in-MR. MIYAMOTO: 16-65.
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CHAIR KANE: --thank you, 16-65 in your Details.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And we'll take a moment to get settled, Mr. Miyamoto. Give us a moment.
NOTE:

Pause.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if! may ask a question.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To our Department and Division, we are aware of a rate proposal
that you folks are presenting regarding fees. Is part of that request attributed to cost
increases in this part of your Division's operation and if so, where and what, what is the
impact areas?
MR. TAKAMINE: Mr. Chair, Tracy Takamine, Division Chief.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: I'll just go over, I guess, the big increases that we have in operation and
maintenance area that, that is listed in the details. But the major increases that, that are
causing our increase in the sewer user fees are ... the big one is electricity. Division wide
we're increasing that from '05 to '06 by $520,000 for electricity. Another big one is the
sludge disposal increase of 370,000 from '04, I mean '05 to '06. We're also asking for
contingency funds of, of $269,292, 57,000 in R&M supplies, 55,000 in chemicals. We
also have Water Department charges for billing services of an increase of 50,000,
equipment - 38,000, and some software - 40,000. So if you total all that up, we're
looking about $1.4 million increases that need to be covered.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Db-huh. And, Mr. Takamine, my apologies. Was that information
you just shared with us part of a Division or Department's handout to us recently?
MR. TAKAMINE: No. The, the numbers I read to you are just in a total of all the Division
sections that add up to this total. Like each, each one of my treatment plants has an index
code for electricity costs, sludge disposal is a division cost, but other than that the other
items I mentioned are division totals.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. How much advance time were you aware of the need
that. .. for this big increases? Was it just something unexpected? 'Cause we, we've seen
some of the other departments having to make adjustments in some of the utility
requirements, and I just say that because, you know, it is my hope and I hope the other
Members can basically agree that if we know a cost is coming to help us prepare, we
would rather do a multi-phasing with acceptable increases than coming with one large
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increase at one time. And I bring that up to you because your sewer fees is going to come
on the County's water bill and because of part of the calculation is based on water
consumption. Water Department is also proposing to increase water fees through their
rates, and with your sewer fee increases, I'm just trying to be able to make it so that each
of the Members can go back and explain to anyone in the County as our constituency
how this happened and why now they see this bill that says "x" more dollars. And, you
know, you shared with us a 1. something million dollar increase. Were you kind of
worried that some of this cost from last budget was going to be impacting you this year?
MR. TAKAMINE: Not immediately after next budget, but we knew this 17 percent increase
would, would be required probably, probably... six or seven months ago based on
incoming electrical cost that, that we've been seeing and the sludge disposal. Those are
the two big, big items and as I mentioned, they total almost a million dollars right there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAKAMINE: We do have a presentation we're going to go through later that, that you
have on how we came about with our assessment, I mean our increase in user fees and
why we need it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Were you able to share with... Mr. Molina, our past Public
Works Chairman as well as Mr. Pontanilla, some of the changes in, in your environment
that, you know, now we have to deal with this 17 percent increase proposal that I'm sure
we're going to hear comments about when, when it gets a little bit more known on the
impact of their bill and then when they calculate, that it will also be part of a Water
Department's increase on their side, too. I'm sure we'll hear a lot of comment by the
constituency. So were you able to help prepare our... the Council through our standing
committee chairs last term and this term about the potential requirements and its impact
to your budget?
MR. TAKAMINE: We did not do a, a presentation, I guess, if, if that's what you're asking too-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, just a heads up, you know, you know, like we, we ...might
have to think about this kind of good size increase, so you just might want to be aware
and keep us informed in that manner.
MR. TAKAMINE: I, I don't recall that we did that. We did mention it to the, the previous
Budget Director as soon as we knew that we were-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one?
MR. TAKAMINE: --Mr. Danny Agsalog-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
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MR. TAKAMINE: --that we were going to have to come in for an increase in our sewer user
fees to maintain our self, self-sufficiency in funding.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I, I'm done. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Just for clarification. If I recall,
Mr. Takamine and members of his Department did a presentation more on a broader
scope regarding the Central Maui Wastewater System. I remember them providing
information for the Committee on that on a broader scope. So, I just wanted to share that
with everyone.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Additional questions, Members, before we actually get into
the actual presentation that they have for us? Okay, Members, just so you realize, we
kind of went through one fell swoop of a lot of the stuff that we have been going a little
slower on. So, I want to make sure you folks know that we kind of went through that
really quick. So if there are no questions, then we'll go ahead and provide the
Department with the time to do this presentation. Okay, let's .. .--(CHANGE OF
TAPE)-- . .. you have questions, Ms. Anderson, before we proceed?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no, no. I'd rather save my questions till after the
presentation.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Takamine.
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. All of you have this handout we prepared, it's
a colored handout titled "WASTEWATER RECLAMAnON DIVISION Proposed FY06
Sewer User & Recycled Water Fees". That's what I'm going to be going over.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: The first sheet is basically our cover sheet and our Division logo and our
mission statement is listed on the front. Our sewer user fees, page 2 ... we are regulated
by Federal and State regulations and by 40 CFR 35.210 and 35.929 and State Department
of Health. Our fees, it states that our fees must be, must be generated with sufficient
revenues for proper operations and maintenance and replacement costs of facilities, and
that each user class must pay their equitable share of those OM&R costs.
The purpose of our fee structure is to, three, three things here, to fund our operation and
maintenance of the wastewater facilities, to fund debt service for wastewater CIP
projects, and to fund our CIP projects. Our goal when we do our sewer user fees is to
remain self-supporting with no General Fund support.
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Page 3 kind of goes over how we develop our rate. We do utilize a computer rate
structure model that was developed by our consultant Black and Veatch back in the early
1990s. When we develop our rate, we look at, we determine what our revenue
requirements are for OM&R and capital costs. We also determine the cost of service for
each user class, for example, single family, multi-family, commercial, and that's based on
the amount of wastewater flow that they are contributing to the system and the strength of
the wastewater, and strength meaning a single family resident might be a lower strength
in terms of processing than a commercial facility would be required. So they get
probably charged a higher rate. We design our rate to recover that cost of service from
each class. So each class when we go with a, when you look at the rate structure, it's a
different cost per, per 1,000 gallons for the different classes. And based on that, we
determined that we needed a 17 percent revenue increase to remain self-supporting for,
actually it's for FY '06 and FY '07. So that, that what we're doing is covering for a
two-year period. And for your information, although it's not on here, we, we ...the last
time we had a rate increase was in FY '05 and that was 17 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Say again?
MR. TAKAMINE: No, excuse me, that's, that's correct. FY '03 it was 11 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Eleven percent, '03.
MR. TAKAMINE: Page 4 is just a informational sheet basically of, of the different classes that
we have currently. For single family we have 19,622 customers, multi-family - 20,394,
residential carehomes - 12. In the non-residential side we're talking about hotels,
government buildings, commercial facilities, we're looking at 1,415, and then we give
you some information on cesspools. Although they're not tied into us, but we do get
discharges from them, and we got 68 accounts on Maui, 35 accounts on Molokai.
On page 4 [sic] is a breakdown our, on our sewer user fees ... or 5. The first column, it
shows you the current rate in black, second column is our proposed increase, the third
column just shows you the maximum increase per month, and the fourth column or last
column shows you the maximum annual increase. So, for example, single family what
they're going to be looking at is on, on their two month bill if they're doing the maximum
amount of discharge to our system, they're looking at an increase of $8.70 or going from
a maximum rate of $31.25 to $35.60 per month. Multi-family you're looking at an
increase of$7.80.
Page 6 we get into commercial and that rate there it's a...by the way, single family,
multi-family, there is a maximum cap. That's why we can tell you what their maximum
rates are. In the single family we charge a maximum of 9,000 gallons. Once they hit
9,000 gallons on a, on their water meter reading, we cap it at that and we assume the rest
of it's going to irrigation. In multi-family it's a 6,000 gallon cap. When we get to
commercial facilities, there is no cap. It's basically a per 1,000 gallon rate based on
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different, a different rate structure depending on what kind of facility you are. So the first
column again is the current rate, second column proposed rates.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If I may just on this specific page, Mr. Takamine. I notice you have
hotel with single and dual meter rates. Then you have your next category which is
industrial, restaurant, commercial with restaurant. Why would that be different from a
hotel with a restaurant or, or, or am I just reading, not reading it right, Mr. Takamine?
MR. TAKAMINE: No, no, that's correct. What it is is if you have a hotel with no restaurant
facilities, that's at rate 4.15 per single meter. If you have a hotel with a facility that has a
restaurant in it, then it's 4.95, and basically I mentioned before the different classes and
strength of wastewater. When you have a restaurant, you have a higher strength of
wastewater that we need to process. That's why they get charged a higher rate. So if you
have a hotel, for example, a thousand room hotel with no restaurant, it'll get charged
4.15. You add one restaurant in there, no matter how big, we go to 4.95. So his
whole ... discharge to the system gets charged at 4.95 per 1,000-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: --oh, based on a single meter.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Is there such a thing as a hotel with no restaurant?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, there might be a... there, there might be small hotels with no
restaurants. Most of the, most of the big resorts have restaurants and, and what we find is
that over the years-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What would a B&B fall under, which category, Mr. Takamine?
MR. TAKAMINE: And, and what-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: An authorized-MR. TAKAMINE: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --bed and breakfast would fall under what category?
MR. TAKAMINE: Bed and breakfast would--oh, good question, I guess let me take a look. If
we don't know about it, it'll just be a single family home.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But we know what, you know, the legal B&Bs come in for approval,
they have a, a.. .license number, I believe, that they can post on the web that says they're
a certified legal, you know, entity. So what, what. .. with that information and that, that
they are able to operate as a vacation rental, what category would you place them under,
under your sewer program?
MR. TAKAMINE: I don't know what we'd do with that. I'd have to get back with you on that
and, and check with our accounting and see how we bill that one. But I, I would assume
it might be multi-family, a multi-family or unit. I'm not sure. I could check that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the kitchen wouldn't be considered a restaurant then?
MR. TAKAMINE: If it's, if it's just got a kitchen and they're renting out the rooms, probably
not.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAIvIA: But they're allowed to prepare food services?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah. If they only had that one kitchen. .. I guess when we look at a
kitchen for restaurant, what we look at is based on Department of Health's rules also. So
most times they have a three compartment
, sink.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
MR. TAKAMINE: Once you have a three compartment sink, you're a restaurant. So if,
if... yeah, if this bed and breakfast has a three compartment sink, we would probably
raise their rates and, and charge them based on a restaurant rate.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, just to allow you to, to give us the correct information
and in writing please, I would ask if you would forward that to our Chairman, please.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay-CHAIR KANE: Any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Takamine, just
following up on Member Hokama's concern regarding the bed and breakfast. This, this
will be more in line with timeshares and as you know, right now the Council is
considering a rate increase for timeshares. Where would timeshares fall under in terms of
your classification? I would just presume hotel, but the industry representatives have
acknowledged to us that they are in favor of an increase but the dispute is how much.
MR. TAKAMINE: A timeshare I think would fall under multi-family because a timeshare
you're talking about each, each unit having, I assume, a kitchen, laundry facilities. So
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it's like a multi-family unit. When we say hotel, they don't have those facilities in, in the
hotel rooms.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One-- Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I'm trying to get an idea and a comparable
idea between single family and multi-family and then commercial uses, and the
commercial uses don't have a base rate, they're just per 1,000 gallons.
MR. TAKAi\1INE: No, they do have a base rate.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, they do? Where is that?
MR. TAKAMINE: We're just not showing it here .... A non-residential has a base rate of $8.50
currently and proposed increase to $10. Hotel, let's see here-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Non-residential meaning anything other than single family
or multi-family?
MR. TAKAMINE: Correct. But there, there's, there's also a breakdown by, by category and
class. Like a hotel with a single meter, it's 4. 15--no, wait, I, I beg your pardon. What I
gave you is correct, 8.50 to $10.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it's going up to $10?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that would be for commercial, hotel, and industrial?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. Any, any non-single family, non-multiple family, multi-family would
be $10 proposed base rate.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So that's considerably less than the base rate for
single and multi-family. So what is the average, you know, just a general idea so I can
get a comparable in my mind? I mean I feel like we're comparing apples and oranges
and maybe that's not important to other Members, but I'd like to get, you know, I'd like
to compare apples and apples here. So, what is, what is the average single family
consumption or discharge, whatever it is? ... {chuckle} . ..
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MR. TAKAMINE: 1993 and 1994, 75 percent of our customers were paying the maximum rate
of$31.25.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Seventy-five percent-MR. TAKAMINE: Seventy-five percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --were paying the maximum?
MR. TAKAMINE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So no matter how much they used-MR. TAKAMINE: They were paying 31.25.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that's like ten years ago.
current, more current statistics?

So you don't have any

MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah. We, we don't have any currently. I don't think that has changed
much because it's based on, you know, irrigation rates of their lawns and, and how much
they use. We use an average of about. .. on, on an average single family home of 350
gallons per day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, Members? And your actual Sewer Fund rate changes are
reflected on page 27 of your budget ordinance and it goes on through 28, 29. So I, I'm
assuming, Mr. Takamine, that it was inadvertent to leave out the base rate change since
you are going over changes with us?
MR. TAKAMINE: We, we could've put it in. We didn't feel it was necessary on that.
CHAIR KANE: But, but it's a reflected change in the ordinance, so-MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. Yes, it is. But when you look at the rate for the single family, that, that
rate there includes the base rate. But, yeah, for the commercial we should've put it in.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Go ahead and proceed, Mr. Takamine.
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. Page 7...well, there is no change for cesspool pumping, but we just
put it in there to, to .. .informational purposes. Right now per, per pump it's $390
maximum of twice per year. Private haulers, we charge them $45 per 1,000 gallons to
discharge at the treatment facility. Recycled water rates, that 97 cents I'm going to go
over next on page, starting from page 8. So--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Could I ask you... the private haulers, who are they
hauling from, the cesspool pumping?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are these haulers also hauling from the harbors and the boat
ramps and the-MR. TAKAMINE: They possibly could be, I'm not sure, but they do pump from County
facilities, Parks, Keanae. So I would assume, yeah, they could be pumping out of the-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: --harbors.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Mr. Takamine.
MR. TAKAMINE: And page 8, I'm now going to get into ...we're also requesting a recycled
water rate. Actually if you look on page 7, we have three categories and I'm going to go
over the ... all other increase from 55 cents per 1,000 to 97 cents per 1,000. So, I'll give
you some information on recycled water fees. Currently, we have three classes of fees:
major agriculture which is greater than 3 million gallons per day or irrigating 400 acres,
agriculture includes golf courses, and all others which are basically commercial tenants
or customers.
Page 9 is just some, again, information. In Kihei with 18 customers, Lahaina - 3,
Kahului - 2, Molokai - 1, and there's a revenue and, and the volume is the amount of
reclaimed water they use per day ... on average.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask, ask Mr. Takamine for, for some of our Members why
Lanai has, although a customer and utilizes pretty much what we generate per day, why
there is no revenue?
MR. TAKAMINE: On Lanai there is, if you're familiar with the Koele Golf Course, the
treatment plant there, we have an agreement with the, the ... golf course. Actually they
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have their own treatment facility, an R-1 treatment facility located adjacent to our
treatment plant. They take 100 percent of the effluent, they treat it to a higher quality and
then they use it on their golf course. Based on that. .. there is no charge because if, if we
had to discharge that water into our, our. . .infiltration ponds, you know, there's no cost to
us. In other words, so it's just a direct discharge into their R -1 facility and they have cost
on their side to operate that facility to include pumping it up to the golf course.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Takamine.
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. Going on to page 8 [sic] . .. showing that three classes and the current
rate and our proposed rate. We are currently proposing no change to major ag of 10 cents
per 1,000, no change to agriculture of20 cents per 1,000. We are, however, requesting a
change to all other category at 55 cents, going up to 97 cents per 1,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. If we can stop here just for a moment. We're almost doubling this,
Mr. Takamine. Can you provide an explanation?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, yes. I'll go over that in the next upcoming page.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: Let's tum to page 11. At 97 cents per 1,000 gallons is our, what we call our
full cost recovery. Operation and maintenance cost to, to process this water and to pump
the water is about 46 cents per 1,000. Debt service is the capital cost that we, we incur to
build the facilities to make this water into R-1 quality water. So a total cost, if you
wanted to break-even, is 97 cents per 1,000 gallons. If you go to page 12, that O&M
cost. .. what we're talking about is our cost to rurt our UV disinfection to, to operate our
off-site pumping, replacement parts for our UV bulbs, chemicals, salaries of our
employees, and, and also our indirect cost that we incur. So all that contributes to our
operation and maintenance cost which was, was 46 cents per 1,000.
Now our debt service cost, in order to make this R-1 water we had to install UV
disinfection equipment, we had to install a off-site distribution system which includes
storage tanks, piping, pumps. We, we had to also upgrade our onsite pump station in
order to get that water out there. So all that's included and that was 70--what was
that?--51 cents per 1,000 ... yeah, 51 cents per 1,000. So based on that we came up with
a, a rate of97 cents per 1,000 gallons to break-even. We did not--for that all others--we
did not at this time want to change the major ag and ag because basically to keep that
program running on that side, it's an incentive for them to pay a lower rate than the going
rate of potable water. Ifwe went to that potable water rate or our break-even rate, we'd
lose customers or they'd go back to their alternate water source which is a lot less than
the current potable water or 97 cents per 1,000 gallons. Based on 97 cents per 1,000
gallons for all others, that last page, page 14 compares our rate to Department of Water
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Supply rate. And as you can see, even at 97 cents per 1,000 gallons it's a, it's a fantastic
deal compared if they had to use DWS potable water rates, and this is not going with their
increase. I don't know what their increase is. So this is the current proposed, I mean
current rates.
If you use this water in Kaanapali with the private system, their, their rates are even
higher. I think they're up to 2.70 something or, or higher per 1,000 gallons. So we feel
that on the all other category the options that are available to the individuals are either go
on the potable water system and pay, you know, a lot more or continue to use recycled
water, and we're finding that people are still willing to pay this rate because recycled
water has now been, is, is now in demand. When we started this program back in the
early '90s, we charged a lower rate because there was a disposal issue and we wanted to
get rid of the water. It's kind ofturned around now and people are coming to us asking
for water. So we, you know, we think it's time that we raise our rates to reflect what we,
what it's costing us to actually pump it and produce it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Questions, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just help us understand. What is the, your definition difference
between major ag and ag, please?
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. Page 8, major ag is anything over usage-wise, if they're using more
than 3 million gallons per day. It's a very, very heavy volume of water where they're
irrigating 400 or more acres. Agriculture might be, for example, a golf course. It doesn't
have that, that amount of volume or acreage. A nursery, that type of facility are
considered agricultural rates.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do we, do you have a major agricultural user at this time,
Mr. Takamine?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah. Maui Land & Pine. They currently, we currently have a reuse
distribution system in Lahaina that pumps up to their irrigation reservoir at, I think it was
200, 200 or 300 foot elevation. They blend it with ditch water, but they're only, they're
only using when they're in a drought condition, though. But we do have a system in
place there that when we do pump to them they fall under major ago
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. And for ...we, we are aware of the ... of our
programs throughout the various districts. So with 2 million gallons a day out oflet's say
for Kihei, is there a balance that you're still injecting into the ground that's on, on, not
unusable, but is ...there's no demand for that amount? Can, can you just go down by the
districts of what would be the balances of usable but not distributed water from the, your
program,please?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. In Kihei the average dry weather flow right now in the plant is about 4
Yz million gallons per day. All of that water is considered R-1 quality water. So we have
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a difference of 2.5 million gallons on average going down into the injection wells. We
are currently continuing to expand that system and we have new customers on-line,
coming on-line in the near future. That's, that system is our very, very good in terms of
availability and accessibility, I guess.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: In Lahaina the average dry weather flow out there is I think 5 to 5 12 million
gallons per day. However, the R-I capacity is only 3 million gallons, and that's based on
the limiting factor that the UV disinfection system currently can only accommodate
3 million gallons per day. But, but we also only have a customer usage of about a million
gallons per day, which is Kaanapali Golf Course. So we, we have about 2 million gallons
available.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: In Kahului that's actually R-2 water, it's not considered R-I water.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you just tell us real quickly what is the main difference between
R-2 andR-I?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, the main difference between R-2 and R-l, R-l water you can.. .is
unrestricted reuse. You can spray it above ground. You, you don't have to have a buffer.
R-2 water has certain restrictions, you need to have a buffer, most times it's going to be a
subsurface or drip irrigation. And the reason why Kahului is a R-2 water is the
disinfection system currently is chlor ... , chlorination and in order to have R-l water you
need two hours of contact time and I believe that facility only has a half hour to an hour.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: So that's why in Kahului, basically that usage there is in plant and the
adjoining... yeah, that park that's being, I think that's being maintained by the
Community Work Day. They've put some palm trees in there. They tapped off our
system and they have drip irrigation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we would need to, if we wanted to go to R-I for Central
Maui to be able to use our reclaimed water, we would need to upgrade your facility then?
Is that the general requirement?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's, that's correct. We, we did a rough estimate. In order to upgrade that
facility, we're looking about 4 to $5 million in, in capital improvement cost which does
not include off-site distribution system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So how much are we injecting into the ground currently from
Kahului, please?
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MR. TAKAMINE: About, about 100 percent, well minus this .2 million gallons.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So that, so that would be about how many...what would be
the gallonage?
MR. TAKAMINE: Four.. .4.2, something like that. And again Molokai, that .005, we have
irrigation of the State that's doing a roadway. They have that just, just before you enter
the town by the treatment plant on both sides of the road, they have the trees and
coconuts trees that's used, using reclaimed water.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What's their capacity? What, what do you produce there?
MR. TAKAMINE: That is an R-2 water.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And what's the-MR. TAKAMINE: Right now they're running 220,000 gallons per day. The plant capacity is
300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, Tracy, the increases that are being proposed would
efficiently, I guess, run your Department with no general funding?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, based on our projected revenues for the upcoming two years and our,
our CIP in operation and maintenance, if electrical costs, you know, that do not skyrocket
on us, then we anticipate that we should be able to properly do our work and, and pay our
bills for the next two years based on that increase.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I'm confused. You've got the rate increase per
class-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What page?
CHAIR KANE: What page are you on, Member Anderson, so we can follow along with you?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, on ours it's page 6.
CHAIR KANE: Of the handout, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But you're asking for a $17 rate increase? Is that correct?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Percent.
CHAIR KANE: Percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, 17 percent. So that 17 percent is, is ... each one of
these rate increases equal 17 percent. . .I mean, you know, per each class?
MR. TAKAMINE: Not exactly 17 percent. It depends on, it depends on the flow and, and some
other factors, but the average is 17 percent. For example, single family they're actually
going to see an increase of... 14 percent, multi-family they're looking at 15 percent.
When you get down into the non-residential, then you start seeing the 18 and 17 percent
range, but on average it's 17 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And that non-residential base rate increase from
8.50 to 10, that's calculated... did you say already into your rate increase it shows here?
MR. TAKAMINE: Not, not on my handout. I did not put the base in there, again, because the
commercial numbers, if you look at it, it's just a per 1,000 gallon rate. It's not
a... monthly rate. So the base increase is, we're looking at 18 percent, from 8.50 to $10
is 18 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so we can add what? And that base rate is per 1,000
gallons?
MR. TAKAMINE: No, that's just the one, the base rate, one time fee.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just that it-MR. TAKAMINE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that's just it? Okay. So that would be 1.50 added on to
whatever their increase is.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. And then, then after that it's per 1,000 gallons. So if they use, how
much volume they use it's just a strict multiplication factor.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Then I wanted to ask that. .. back on page 2... you
talked about how, what regulates the fees and the purpose of the fee and... fees. Will this
increase, in other words this is the only... these, these fees are the way you fund your CIP
projects?
MR. TAKAMINE: Some of our CIP projects are funded by bond float and also State Revolving
Fund, but I guess in terms of when, when ... debt service it's funded, debt service is
funded through these sewer user fees and CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Debt service only? What I'm getting at, Mr. Takamine,
is ... are we asking current users through rate increases to fund expansion for future use?
MR. TAKAMINE: I guess I need clarification. Are you talking about like expanding the
treatment plant and paying for that now or... ?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, any expansion for future use, for future users rather
than current users.
MR. TAKAMINE: If, if we do expand a facility, we mostly likely would, and it's required by
DOH, is set up an assessment fee for that expansion and the new peop ... , new customers
that tie on pay for that expansion based on the assessment fee.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
expansion?

Okay.

So we're not asking current users to fund any

MR. TAKAMINE: No ... not, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just for clarification. On the single family you said that
today most families are paying the 31.25 ... the maximum?
MR. TAKAMINE: About 75 percent, 75 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... 350 gallons per day is domestic consumption?
MR. TAKAMINE: Three hundred fifty gallons per day is what is discharged into the sewer
system.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's what your assumption
discharged to the sewer system?

IS,

that it's gomg to be

MR. TAKAMINE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You don't want to do it the other around and say "x" should
be for irrigation up to a maximum, then the rest is domestic and discharged to the sewer
system?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, I mean each individual family might. .. one, one might use, let's see,
9,000 gallons, but another household might use 30,000 gallons.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. TAKAMINE: So basically what we're saying is we'll just take that 9,000, anything above
that would be irrigation. We don't know how much irrigation he would use.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Well-MR. T AKAMINE: He could've left his faucet on and... for two months-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --well, the point I'm making is that most of the .. .I mean we,
I am surprised that there would be 350 gallons per day used by some of these houses. As
you see a lot of the homes are being built up and built up ... they, in fact they're reducing
the yard size because they're building out to the setback. So their irrigation would
probably remain constant, but the number of people they have in the household increases.
So have you looked at flipping that and saying we'll allot "x" amount per square footage
of yard or per lot depend, you know, because of the .. .its lot sizes, especially residential,
are determined what the setbacks are, and then we know what an average lot size is for
each subdivision and then allot so much for irrigation and then the rest should be in the,
in what goes into your system.
MR. MIYAMOTO: The, the 350 gallons per day that Tracy's citing is generally a number that's
used for capacity allocation for the plants.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Generally when you have a single family, that's how much you allow for
that particular unit. The, the method you're suggesting is probably the next generation in
this rate study that they have, that Black and Veatch has, has ...
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. MIYAMOTO: ... developed. I know I think something like that is developed for Water
Department. So it's the next generation of being a little bit more detailed. It's certainly
going to cost a lot of money to gather a lot of that data because household size is, is very
hard to predict and to, to collect data on, but something that down the road, I think,
maybe in the next rate study that they do, they may look at (inaudible due to
interruption)-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Have you done, have you done a comparison or somebody
gonna do a comparison on what the cost would be to put in two meters at each, at each
residential area to determine for sure what the agricultural or non-domestic use is on
separating that out from ... you know, dom ... , agriculture-MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --oh, not agriculture, but irrigation, landscape, that sort of
thing?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah, some of the bigger hotels actually do have dual meters where they
separate an irrigation meter out with their, their other uses. But at this point we have not
done any study or...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. MIYAMOTO: ... to try and determine that, but that's I think something that's being
recommended in the next series of rate studies that they do. They may get a little bit
more detail and suggest maybe that type of an approach.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, 'cause I'm just looking at our housing situation here
and we know that families are doubling and tripling up. That means it's going to, it's
putting a strain on the system, wastewater system that's not being recognized and
compensated for.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Questions? Ms. Anderson... can we recognize Ms. Johnson? She's ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I'm just piggybacking on what Charmaine was
mentioning and my question has to do with in properties that are similar to the one that I
live at where we're not on County water system, we're on let's say Kaanapali or private
water system, we have no dual metering system and what we do is basically everything
that we use that goes on our landscape is potable. How do you determine or how do you
come up with a rate adjustment because so many of our owners are absentee, the majority
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of our water is used, you know, we have 40 acres so it goes on the golf course or, or not
on the golf course, but it goes on the land that surrounds our buildings. How do you
compensate for those kind of situations?
MR. TAKAMINE: For Kaanapali, Kualapuu and Lanai we have flat rates because, as you
mentioned, we don't have control of those water meters. So, for example, in Kaanapali,
Kualapuu and Lanai, the flat rate currently is $29, it's going to go to 33 for single family;
multi-family, 24.90 to 28. Honestly, I can't tell you how these numbers were developed
way back when, but they're just strictly a flat rate based on each individual home and not
based on the water consumption. I have to get back with you on how, how we developed
it back then 'cause I don't know the answer to that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And the only reason I ask it is because, you know, if
there is an incentive to do, I guess, a dual waterline system where we could actually use
the reclaimed water to do our irrigation, I think what would be helpful for us particularly
in our property where we would be willing to actually invest in the dual, you know, line
and use the reclaimed water. I mean obviously it would help us a big, you know, a big
percentage. So our water bills are massive ... as, as well as our sewage bills. I, I think
from that perspective I think it would help us, you know, to know what is the cost benefit
ratio. And I don't know about other properties, but all I can do is look at well, what's the
incentive for us to go and make use of the reclaimed water which also helps you because
it doesn't have to go into injection wells. And how can we work together to actually have
it be a mutual benefit so that it's, over time it's a cost savings for us? So I guess that's
what I'm trying to figure out. So any kind of guidance that you could give to whether it's
our property or other similar properties, I'm sure we're not the only ones. So I, I would
really appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. You mentioned a rate study. When was there
a rate study done?
MR. TAKAMINE: I don't have the exact date. Back in the early 1990s we hired Black and
Veatch as a consultant. They developed a, let's see .. .I think it was early, must've been
the early... about 1990 'cause since 1993 we've had several rate increases. And their,
their study actually recommended that we increase our rates every two years to keep up
with inflation and, and increase in maintenance cost. However, that hasn't happened, you
know, based on funding and, and elections.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(chuckle). ..
MR. TAKAMINE: So does that answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you, you used that rate study as a foundation for these
rate increases?
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MR. T AKAMINE: That, that is correct and, and we, we again mentioned, I mentioned to you
we do use their model that they developed and when they came to the County and looked
at all our facilities, looked at the cost of operation and, and developed this model
specifically for Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So, Mr. Takamine, is this model accurate since it's from the early '90s and here
we are in 2006 Fiscal Year Budget and we haven't followed, and you just said by your
own admission that we haven't followed the model. So how accurate is it and how, how
can we rely on it?
MR. TAKAMINE: I believe it's fully accurate that we're still in touch with the consultant. I
mean they're, they're not gone. In fact whenever we have problems with the software,
we, we call them up, they come in, and I believe they've been back at least once or twice
to update the model. Based on, again, their two-year projection, you know, there was a,
there was a constant rate increase proposed, but because we didn't follow it. . .like, like I
said, back in '93 we had a 45 percent increase, '95 it was 13 percent, '97 it was 1 percent,
'99 it was 29 percent. So we've made up ground by, by increasing the rates I guess
higher than what they recommended if we had been doing it consistently on a two-year
basis, and I guess since 2000 we have been self-supporting. So we've, we've moved
from General Fund support to year 2000 and we've been able to maintain our
self-sufficiency based on our projected revenues, expenditures and, and we've, I believe,
so far, you know, we've been pretty good in terms of spending what we asked for and,
and meeting the budget based on what we asked for. I mean we haven't gone back to the
General Fund since 2000 to, to bail us out.
CHAIR KANE: Do you see, do you see us being able to achieve this self-sustainability or, or
reliance upon this fund or non-reliance on General Fund, but with more of an incremental
approach? I, I. . .it just comes back to Mr. Hokama's comment about here we are we
going get one 17 percent, we're tied to water, it's 12 percent, we're going to look at
approximately a, almost a 30 percent raise and the people are going to get nailed in a time
when we're dealing with--and it's not your problem, it's a we problem--of assessments,
etcetera, etcetera, everything is going up all at once. And so for us it's a lot simpler to, to
swallow the medicine when we have incremental raises of single digits. So that model
does it, in the every two year. . .increase, is it by how much, that two year model? Does
it give you an average increase to, to keep up with...with not relying on General Fund
subsidy?
MR. TAKAMINE: I don't recall the exact numbers back when it was done but, you know,
things change. You know, when the model was developed, I'm sure it didn't take into
account the, the, the large amount of expenditures that we've done since the consent
decree came about and, and we're looking at some other major CIP projects just because
of the age of the system, and all our facilities are all 30-plus years old and they're hitting,
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hitting the point where we're looking at major expenses upcoming in the future years.
And, and if we come up with the Central Maui study and it says that we need to move
that facility and build a new facility, we're talking, you know, hundreds and millions of
dollars. So that will, again, impact sewer user fees or determine, we'd have to determine
how we're going to fund that and it might, might be more than that average 2, 2
percentage per year. But if, if we can get that, you know, I, I would say that's a good
way to go because then I can look at what we're going to get, and I, I know that we're
going to have an increase every two years. So if we can (inaudible) more consistently
plan how to, how to make ... expand the facilities or, or change our facilities or expand
facilities instead of trying to come in and ask you for the increase, and if we don't get it,
then I gotta fallback and, and determine well, we're not going to fix something this year,
you know, and things start, things start piling up and then we, we get into a catch-up
mode instead of a preventative maintenance mode. And, and I guess that's the key. If, if
I know that every two years we're going to get a certain percentage increase, I can get
into preventive maintenance mode and, and project changing out motors and pumps, you
know, when they hit their life expectancy because I know that I'll have funds available
to, to do that.
CHAIR KANE: Relevant to this proposal if this body or, or, more importantly, if the public
could see every year it's going to go up 4 percent, 5 percent, whatever, but they see over
a period of time what it's going to go up and why it's going to go up, it makes it a lot
easier it seems, theoretically, for the public and this body who represents that public to, to
keep with those incremental steps. And I guess that would be need, that needs to be done
via some sort of working plan that we can have a discussion outside of this mode that
we're in now. As it is based on the earlier remarks, Mr. Molina as well as Mr. Pontanilla,
the past and present chairs of, of the Committee had no idea this was coming, and which
kind of threw me was that you've talked about the recycled water support from the
community and yet here's the body that's going to have to support you on the rate change
and we haven't heard a word until this proposal was given to us on March 15 th , and it's a
17 percent one to boot. So, you know, I, I ... so the question then becomes because
you're looking out for a two year increase, this is going to accommodate you for the next
two years, can we look at an alternative where the rate increase is not so high this fiscal
year budget knowing that next year we could look at an incremental increase to again
achieve your two year goal of, of, of self-reliance?
MR. TAKAMINE: I would say we, we could look at that. Again, that 17 percent was based on,
on covering two years. I guess what we look at also is that, you know, it's a fact of life,
next year is election year and whenever we come in during election year, you know, it's a
lot harder to get money and, and-CHAIR KANE: Well, this body has demonstrated that it can raise rates in very tough times.
We've done it twice. So over the past six years that I've been here individually, and I
won't speak for anybody else, we've had to face those serious issues because we had to
do what we had to do and make sure that we keep moving forward for this community.
So anyway, I'll get off the box, Members. Sorry. Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Takamine, I don't know if you have
the data available with you, but how does this proposed rate increase compare to what,
what the counties are looking at? I know, I understand Oahu is looking at a rate increase
as well.
MR. TAKAMINE: I don't know what the exact rate increases are, but I can tell you that
currently in comparison to the other counties, Kauai County charges a flat rate of $45 per
single family horne. That covers the operation and maintenance and SRF loans. It does
not cover any debt service for capital improvements. That's covered under General
Fund. So they have, again, a $45 flat rate. Hawaii County, they have a $27 flat rate and
that only covers operation and maintenance. None of their capital improvement costs are
paid for out of the sewer user fees; it's all paid out of the General Fund. In Oahu, they
pay a flat rate or they pay a base rate of 24.85 and a per 1,000 gallon rate of $1.05 per
1,000 with no cap. That means if you use water in your yard, you're paying, you're
paying exorbitant amount of money, and their funds cover, cover similar to ours, it covers
everything--O&M, debt service, and SRF loans. And I understand they're going up by
25, 30 percent increase.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. So ... you became self-sufficient back in the
year 2000 up to 2003-MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --and from 2003-MR. TAKAMINE: Up to 2005 actually we're still self-sufficient.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Self-sufficient up to ... oh, okay, fine. I thought it was
up to 2003, and the question I was going to ask you was that from 2003 to 2005, you
know, what the Department had to not do to maintain your self-sufficiency? But since
you're self-sufficient up to 2005, then forget about the question.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was wondering if you could provide us with a history as
of 1990 to now when, when and how much the increases have been? You gave us a brief
verbal overview of that and I think that would be helpful.
MR. TAKAMINE: You, you want it in writing or do you want it now?
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CHAIR KANE: It'll probably be better in writing, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON : Yes, please.
CHAIR KANE: So we'll just get a response. We'll make sure the question goes and .. .I guess
the question becomes, Ms. Anderson, how much level of detail do you want them
to ... because as you can see on the three pages for the Sewer Fund and the amount of
rates that there are, it can get into some level of detail. And so depending on how-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ijust think that percent, the overall percentage is fine-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --just as you, as you just described, Mr. Takamine, in this
last go-around.
CHAIR KANE: Based on (inaudible due to interruption)-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause I know in 19 ...you mentioned in 1998 there was a
29 percent increase. So, I'd just like to see the historical background on that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll get that question out, Ms. Anderson. Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No question, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any, any further questions in this area, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: Members, without objections, the Chair is going to request if they can show us
an alternative, an incremental approach versus the 17 percent that's going to cover the
next two years, just so it's something that we can look at and possibly consider at the
deliberative stage. So we will send that request in writing and ask the Department to
respond and see if they can make some adjustment for that. Members, any further
questions, please forward it to the Department and we'll get a timely response.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, just a follow up on what you said.
Probably the worst tax we ever put on people was the gas tax and we did that in an
election year.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, 5 cents.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Five cents a gallon.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. So, Members-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And we all made it back.
CHAIR KANE: --without further comment, I think this is ...we're good until Monday morning,
9 o'clock, Members. Tomorrow we have our Council meeting with Mr. Hokama and our
agenda is ready to go on that. We have a few interesting items. Tonight we have this
being used. Have a greet weekend, Members, and get ready for budget next week.
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, again thank you. Just to ask the Members if they are able
to, to please participate and enjoy the celebration of our 100th birthday as a County
government, which I believe will start at 5:00 p.m. this evening in these very Chambers.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions or comments? Hearing none, Members,
this meeting for April 14th , 2005 is adjourned .... (gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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